
  

Truro Select Board  
Tuesday, June 14, 2022 

Executive Session-4:30pm 
Regular Meeting-5:00pm 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
https://meet.goto.com/243171605 
1-877-309-2073 Access Code:  243-171-605 
 
Move that the Select Board enter into Executive Session for the following purposes: 
1) in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 30A, §21 (a) 3, to discuss strategy 

with respect to litigation, Watson v. Hultin et al., Land Court 22 Misc 00280 (127 South Pamet Road), where 
discussion of these matters in open session would have a detrimental effect on the litigating positions of the 
Town (and the Chair so declares it); and  

2) to review and approve the executive session meeting minutes of September 9, 2021, October 8, 2021, October 
12, 2021, and February 11, 2022; and 

3) to determine whether continued nondisclosure of the following executive session meeting minutes is warranted: 
September 9, 2021, October 8, 2021, October 12, 2021, and February 11, 2022; and not to reconvene in open 
session. 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING 
https://meet.goto.com/736047797 
1-866-899-4679 Access Code:  736-047-797 

This will be a remote meeting. Citizens can view the meeting on Channel 18 in Truro and on the web on the "Truro 
TV Channel 18" button under "Helpful Links" on the homepage of the Town of Truro website.  Click on the green 
"Watch" button in the upper right of the page. To provide comment during the meeting please call in toll free at 
1-866-899-4679  and enter the following access code when prompted: 736-047-797 or you may join the 
meeting from a computer, tablet or smartphone by entering the follow URL into your web browser: 
https://meet.goto.com/736047797 Please note that there may be a slight delay (15-30 seconds) between the meeting 
and the live-stream (and television broadcast).  If you are watching the meeting and calling in, please lower the 
volume on your computer or television during public comment so that you may be heard clearly. We ask that you 
identify yourself when calling in to help us manage multiple callers effectively.  

1.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
2.  PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
3. INTRODUCTION TO NEW EMPLOYEES – None 
        
4. BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

A. Krista Edwards-Recreation Advisory Committee 
B. Peter Morris-Recreation Advisory Committee  

 
5. STAFF/ COMMITTEE UPDATES 

A. Staff Update: ARPA Application for Broadband Needs Assessment Study, IT Director David Wennerberg 
B. Staff Update: Summer Safety, Police Chief Jamie Calise 

 
6. TABLED ITEMS  

https://meet.goto.com/243171605?_ga=2.100171165.265828528.1654867581-968131470.1586463477
https://meet.goto.com/736047797?_ga=2.53863083.2020089233.1653069401-968131470.1586463477
https://meet.goto.com/736047797?_ga=2.53863083.2020089233.1653069401-968131470.1586463477


A. Review and Approve Revised Select Board Policy 28: Curb Cuts  
Presenter: Robert Weinstein, Select Board Vice-Chair and Jarrod Cabral, Public Works Director 

B. Discussion with Dana Pazolt ADA License Holder  
Presenter: Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager 

 
7. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

A. Invitation for Financial Management Review 
Presenter:  Alex Lessin Martini, Finance Director 

B. Service Agreement with Cape Cod Conservation District and Woods Hole Group 
Presenter:  Jarrod Cabral, Public Works Director 

C. Select Board Appointment Process 
Presenter: Sue Areson, Select Board 

 
8. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature:  
1. Harbor to the Bay MassDOT Event Notification Form 
2. Entertainment Application-Truro Concert Committee 

B. Review and Approve Appointment Renewals: None 
C. Review and Approve 2022 Seasonal Business Licenses: North of Highland Campground-Transient Vendor 

License  
D. Review and Approve Select Board Minutes: Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes of 3.22.2022; Select 

Board Regular Meeting Minutes of 4.5.2022 
 
9.   Select Board Reports/Comments 

 
10. Town Manager Report 
 
Next Meeting Agenda: Work Session- June 21, 2022; Regular Meeting and Joint Meeting on Stormwater 
Mitigation- June 28, 2022. 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Applications to Serve-Recreation Advisory Committee 
 
EXPLANATION:  The Board will consider two applications to serve on the Recreation Advisory 
Committee submitted by Krista Edwards and Peter Morris.  The Recreation Advisory 
Committee has two positions open; a one-year full-membership term and a one-year 
alternate-membership term.  Filling these two positions will give the Recreation Advisory 
Committee a full complement of members. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The Recreation Committee will continue to have two vacancies. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to appoint Krista Edwards to a one-year (full-membership 
term/alternate-membership term) which expires June 30, 2023. 
Motion to appoint Peter Morris to a one-year (full-membership term/alternate-membership 
term) which expires June 30, 2023. 
 
*Note-please advise appointees that Administration Staff will reach out to them for required 
paperwork and training before being sworn in. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application to Serve-Krista Edwards 
2. Application to Serve-Peter Morris 

 

Agenda Item:  4A 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item:  4A1

January 15

January 15







Agenda Item:  4A2

January 15

January 15







1 
 

Agenda Item: 5A 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

                     Select Board Agenda Item  
 
DEPARTMENT: Information Technology 
 
REQUESTOR:  Information Technology Director David Wennerberg 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022 
 
ITEM: Staff Update: ARPA Application for Broadband Needs Assessment Study 
 
EXPLANATION:  The Town of Truro has significant gaps in broadband availability and reliability 
throughout the community. The Town’s Cable and Internet Advisory Committee has been 
considering steps to examine the issue in greater detail so that community leadership can 
make informed decisions about possible solutions. As a first step, we need to conduct a 
comprehensive needs assessment study to pinpoint the areas in town that are 
unserved/underserved regarding broadband connection and speed. To address public safety 
concerns, the needs assessment study will also include an analysis of the cellular 
communications at the beaches. IT Director David Wennerberg will provide an overview of the 
proposed needs assessment study and related application for ARPA (American Rescue Plan 
Act) funds. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):   ARPA grant funding. 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  N/A 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  None. Report only. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Broadband Needs Assessment Survey Template 

 



Broadband Needs Assessment Survey Template Agenda Item: 5A1 

Phase 1: Community Broadband Study and Assessment 
Tasks: 

1. Community Education 
2. Stakeholder Engagement 
3. Community Broadband Survey 
4. Broadband Performance Testing 
5. High-Level Design and Cost Estimate 
6. High-Level Business Analysis 

 
Task 1: Community Education 
It is important to help citizens understand the impact of broadband services, especially for 
future growth and success. The following efforts are designed to provide a common foundation 
of knowledge about broadband to citizens and stakeholders: 

① Educate residents about the goals for the pre-feasibility study and what community leaders 
hope to achieve by improving broadband access in Truro. 

② Define 21st Century broadband services. 
1. It should be FAST.  The FCC has established that broadband is defined by 25 Mbps download, 3 

Mbps upload speeds. This is considered the minimum for effective use in today’s connected 
world. Realistically, much faster speeds are quickly becoming the norm, with Gigabit internet 
(1,000 Mbps) becoming the standard in many communities and 10 Gbps internet now being 
offered in some communities. The FCC’s definition of broadband is based solely on advertised 
speed and does not reflect the real-world reality of service slowdowns and interruptions that 
negatively impact the user’s experience. 

2. It should be AFFORDABLE. Having world-class broadband speeds accomplish little if few people 
can afford it. Broadband should be financially accessible to as many people as possible.  

3. It should be RELIABLE. Internet is no longer a convenience or luxury; it is a necessity of everyday 
life. Just as electric customers would not tolerate extended and frequent service outages, 
neither should internet customers.  

4. It should be UNIVERSALLY AVAILABLE, in other words, available everywhere in the community. 
Some internet delivery technologies provide limited geographic coverage. Some providers 
choose to extend service only to certain areas. Neither reason is acceptable in today’s 
connected world. And like roads and education, it should be available to all citizens. 

5. It should be CONSUMER FOCUSED. Large incumbent operators that operate in large geographic 
footprints cannot provide the level of customer care that community-based providers can. 
 

③ Promote understanding and awareness of why 21st Century broadband is important for the 
community's future. 

1. Quality of Life. Communities spend a great deal of time, effort, and money trying to make their 
town a great place to live, work, and play. Elements of quality of life include public safety, 



Broadband Needs Assessment Survey Template Agenda Item: 5A1 

education, and recreation. Just like safe streets and things to do are attractions for persons 
looking to put down roots, so are 21st century broadband services. 

2. Business and economic development. More and more traditional businesses rely on the 
internet for key elements of operations, including sales. In addition to these traditional “brick 
and mortar” businesses, a growing number of small businesses are based in the home. All 
businesses require access to the world whether selling products or acquiring supplies. In either 
case, reliability and affordability are two key elements of driving economic activity in your 
community. 

3. Education. The educational sector has adopted technology at a rapid pace because it enhances 
learning. And since learning does not end at the final bell of the school day, students need 
access to internet when they come home. Slow internet, or an extended outage, may make the 
difference between a completed homework assignment and a failing grade. Deficits in 
broadband were made abundantly clear during the COVID-19 pandemic as classrooms moved 
online and some students found themselves struggling to learn. 

4. Health care. Health care facilities are already highly dependent on the internet for what has 
been traditionally called “remote health care”. Now most health care organizations are moving 
beyond sharing information among their facilities into delivering health care services via the 
internet to patients in their homes. E-health will allow us to deliver better care faster and at 
lower cost and will help our aging population remain independent and healthy. 

5. Other local needs.  Examples include sensor systems to monitor water and air quality; 
agricultural sensor networks that collect soil conditions; smart grids will make energy delivery 
and use more efficient.  Public safety and disaster preparedness require special needs at special 
times. Many new applications will have local communication needs. 

④ Share what other communities have experienced with improved broadband services, 
showing community members what is possible when the goal of better broadband is achieved.   

 
Task 2: Stakeholder Engagement 
Engaging in a dialogue with area residents, both individually and in small groups, helps frame 
up the issues that they face when it comes to broadband access and utilization. 
 
① Interview key institutional and business leaders to identify their specific needs and 
how/whether those needs are currently being met by existing providers.   

② Hold meetings (in-person or virtual) with specific stakeholder groups to further explore 
specific broadband needs and seek feedback on perceived capacity for local solutions. We 
recommend five small-group meetings with some combination of the following specific groups: 

1. Education 
2. Public safety 
3. Governmental entities and schools 
4. Economic development leadership 
5. Health care 
6. Industrial & commercial  



Broadband Needs Assessment Survey Template Agenda Item: 5A1 

7. Other stakeholder groups as identified by the client. 

Additional videoconferencing and input meetings with key stakeholders would be on an as-
needed basis. 

Task 3: Community Broadband Survey 
The online community broadband survey will contain broadband industry questions that are 
designed to help determine the ability to capture market share from existing providers.  This 
evaluation of the market opportunity will be of value to both the Town and any other potential 
provider in determining take rates and financial performance.   
 
Task 4: Broadband Performance Testing 
As part of the survey, SSC will also collect data from Truro homes and businesses about their 
internet performance. Using this type of crowd-sourced speed and performance testing we can 
gather a clearer idea of what consumers are actually experiencing from current providers and 
not just what’s advertised. 
 
Task 5: High-Level Design and Cost Estimate 
Our project partner HR Green will utilize GIS data to provide a reasonable estimate of the costs 
to build a fiber-to-the-home network that reaches every premise. While this high-level estimate 
would not be adequate for financing and a full engineering design would be required before 
construction, the estimate will give leaders a reasonable range of possible costs for a network. 
 
Task 6: High-Level Business Analysis 
Utilizing the cost estimate in Task 5, SSC will conduct a high-level business analysis that will 
examine likely revenue requirements needed to support a Town-owned fiber network. The 
analysis will include likely financing structures and community leaders’ feedback on options.  Its 
goal is to help determine broad financial parameters needed to achieve the project’s goals.  
 
 



1 
 

Agenda Item: 5B 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

                     Select Board Agenda Item  
 
DEPARTMENT: Police 
 
REQUESTOR:  Police Chief Jamie Calise 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022 
 
ITEM: Staff Update: Summer Safety 
 
EXPLANATION:  Police Chief Jamie Calise will provide a brief update on summer safety and any 
other current happenings in the Truro Police Department. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):   N/A 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  N/A 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  None. Report only. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None. 

 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
REQUESTOR:  Jarrod J. Cabral, DPW Director 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022   
 
ITEM:  Review and Approve Revised Select Board Policy 28: Curb Cuts   
 
EXPLANATION: As directed by the Select Board, Vice-Chair Weinstein worked with Town staff 
to revise Select Board Policy 28: Curb Cuts. The draft policy was presented at the February 22, 
2022, meeting for review and comment. Based on the feedback received from that meeting, 
Vice-Chair Weinstein, Town Planner & Land Use Counsel Barbara Carboni, and Public Works 
Director Cabral prepared the attached revised Select Board Policy 28: Curb Cuts draft for the 
Board’s consideration. The intent of the revisions is to provide clarification and address the 
future needs of the Town.  
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Policy will not be changed.     
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve the proposed changes to Select Board Policy 28: 
Curb Cuts.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Existing Select Board Policy #28: Curb Cut Policy 
2. Proposed Select Board Policy #28: Curb Cut Policy 
3. Curb Cut Approvals Form 

 

Agenda Item:  6A 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: (508) 349-7004 Fax: (508) 349-5505 

POLICY MEMORANDUM #28 
Date:    Adopted June 6, 2000, revised 9/22/04, 2/28/06, 6/13/06, 10/13/07 

Subject: CURB CUT POLICY 

1. Introduction

Due to the continuing growth in construction activity in Truro and the associated growth in curb cuts, the 
Board of Selectmen has established the following Curb Cut Policy in order to address inherent safety 
concerns. 

This policy is intended to provide control over access to Town or State owned roads and uniformity of 
requirements and standards of construction for every curb cut request.  Upon inspection by the Director of the 
Department of Public Works, there may be additional construction requirements imposed for a particular 
situation, but none that would be contradictory to the Subdivision Control Laws as outlined in MGL Chapter 
41, Sections 81K through 81GG, or the Town of Truro Rules and Regulations governing the Subdivision of 
Land (Rules and Regulations), Sections 3.6.2, 3.6.6, 4, Table 1 and Section 1.5. 

2. Policy

Alteration of existing curb cut(s) and/or requests for additional curb cuts off of a Town or State owned road(s) 
shall cause an applicant to for file a Curb Cut Permit (CCP).  Any application for a building permit that 
includes a proposed curb cut on property off a Town or State owned road will first require an approved CCP. 
The approved CCP must be provided to the Truro Building Commissioner prior to or at the time of requesting 
a building permit. No such building permit will be issued without an approved CCP. Additionally, a final 
certificate of occupancy for the construction will not be issued unless the conditions of the CCP have been 
met.  

The Truro Board of Selectmen will refer any Town concerns regarding proposed curb cuts on State owned 
roads to the Massachusetts Highway Department for consideration. 

The curb cut construction requirements of this Policy will be applicable to new construction, existing 
structures, and renovations thereto. 

3. Action

Application for a CCP will be made on approved forms available at Town Hall or the Department of Public 
Works. A copy of the current (as of this date) CCP application form is attached as Exhibit 1. The applicant for  

Agenda Item:  6A1



Selectmen’s Policy #28 
Curb Cut Policy 
Page 2 
 
a CCP, or his/her agent, will be available to the Director of the Department of Public Works and the Chief of 
Police  to enable a site inspection and to answer any questions regarding the CCP application. 
 
The Planning Board approval/sign off is required for approved subdivision roads on Town or State roads and 
for endorsed Site Plan Review on Town or State roads. 
 
All curb cuts shall be located and constructed in such a manner so as to preclude: 
 

a. Damage to the Town or State road either at the time of construction or in the future; 
b. Drainage from private property onto the Town or State road; 
c. Introduction of sand, soils, or other materials onto the Town or State road; and 
d. Any other potential hazard to public safety as may be identified by the Director of the Department 

of Public Works and/or the Chief of Police. 
 
All curb cuts will comply with the Town of Truro construction requirements, as noted on the attached 
information sheet and shown as Exhibit 2; the design standards shown under the Rules and Regulations, 
Section 2.5.8; the Mass Highway permit requirements as applicable; and/or as required by the Director of the 
Department of Public Works.  
 
All applications for a curb cut and approval of performance conditions on Town roads shall be subject to 
review, including a site visit by the Director of the Department of Public Works and the Chief of Police, prior 
to approval. The Director shall make recommendations on each application, based upon the Town’s 
construction requirements as outlined above, such as location, materials to be used, catch basin(s) location(s), 
and so forth, if required. All such required construction will be at the applicant’s expense.  The Chief of Police 
will review the application site to ascertain that the curb cut will not be detrimental to traffic flow and the 
public’s safety.  
 
Final approval by the Director of the Department of Public Works shall be made only after approval by the 
Planning Board, if required, after completion of all construction, and after a final inspection by the Director of 
the Department of Public Works has been made. Final written approval shall become a part of the property 
records maintained by the Building Commissioner, and shall be completed prior to the issuance of a certificate 
of occupancy. 
 
The Board of Selectmen may waive any requirements of this policy, at their sole discretion, when such waiver 
is deemed to be in the best interests of, and at no cost to, the Town of Truro. 
 
4. Enforcement 
 
Failure to comply with this policy shall result in one or more of the following actions: 
 

a. A refusal to issue a building permit (permit approval) and/or a certificate of occupancy  (permit 
compliance); 

 
 
 
 



Selectmen’s Policy #28 
Curb Cut Policy 
Page 3 
 

b. A request to Mass Highway for disapproval of the applicant’s request for a permit to enter a State 
Highway; and/or 

c. A penalty of $300.00 for each violation through the non-criminal disposition process as outlined in 
the Truro General Bylaws. Each day a violation exists shall be considered a new violation. 

 
2. Process 
 
Following is an outline of the chronological process to be used for conformance to this Policy: 
 

a. Applicant submits an approved application for a Curb Cut Permit. 
b. Director of the Department of Public Works performs a site visit, attaches his recommendations to 

the Board of Selectmen, and forwards the completed curb cut application to the Chief of Police. 
c. The Chief of Police performs a site visit; he notes his approval/disapproval of the application based 

on safety considerations and forwards the application to the Board of Selectmen. 
d. Board of Selectmen approves/disapproves the application w/wo conditions and forwards the results 

to the applicant. If the application is disapproved, the process starts over again with a revised 
application reflecting the reason(s) for disapproval. 

e. Upon the approval of the Board of Selectmen, applicants whose curb cut applications are tied to a 
building permit will proceed as below: 

 1. Applicant includes the approved Curb Cut Permit to his/her application for a building  
 permit. 
 2. Construction occurs. 
 3. Property owner or his/her agent applies for a certificate of occupancy. 
 4. Director of the Department of Public Works performs a site visit to determine compliance 
 with the conditions of the Curb Cut Permit and informs the Building Commissioner, in writing, 
 that the conditions have or have not been met. If the latter, the  applicant will be informed of 
 what actions are required to meet the conditions of the Curb Cut Permit and that they must be 
 completed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  

  
 
 
      __________________________________  __________________________________ 
     Alfred Gaechter, Chairman    Gary Palmer, Vice-Chairman 
 
     __________________________________  ___________________________________ 
    Christopher R. Lucy, Clerk     Curtis Hartman 
 

___________________________________ 
Janet W. Worthington 
Board of Selectmen 

Town of Truro 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

TOWN OF TRURO  
APPLICATION FOR A CURB CUT PERMIT 

 
Note: This permit application must be accompanied by a plan. If this permit is being applied for by someone 
other than the Owner of the property, the owner’s signature must appear at the bottom of the application. 
 
Date: _______________ 
 
To the Board of Selectmen 
24 Town Hall Road 
P. O. Box 2030 
Truro, MA 02666 
 
Re: APPLICATION FOR A CURB CUT 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The applicant(s) hereby make application for a curb cut as follows: 
 
Name(s): _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Curb Cut Street Location: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Affected Town or State road:______________________________________________________ 
 
Truro Assessor’s Map Number: ________ Parcel Number: ________ 
 
Name of contractor: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason/explanation: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I/we hereby agree to the terms and conditions as outlined in this policy and attached Exhibits: 
 
Applicant’s Signature: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Owner’s Signature (if different): __________________________________ Date:____________ 
 
Owner’s Address (if different): ____________________________________________________
 
 
 
 



Application for a Curb Cut Permit 
Page 2 
 
Director, Department of Public Works Preliminary Approval: 
_______ Approved ______ Disapproved    ______ Not Applicable 
 
_______________________________________   _______________ 
Director, Department of Public Works    Date 
 
Chief of Police Approval: 
_______ Approved   ________ Disapproved   ______ Not applicable 
 
_______________________________________   ________________ 
Chief of Police       Date 
  
Board of Selectmen Approval: 
_______ Approved ______ Disapproved 
 
________________________________________   ________________ 
Chairman, Board of Selectmen     Date 
 
Planning Board Approval (if required): 
_______ Approved ______ Disapproved      ______ Not Applicable 
 
_______________________________________   ________________ 
Chairman, Planning Board      Date 
 
Building Commissioner Approval: 
_______ Approved ______ Disapproved  Building Permit Number _______________ 
 
_______________________________________   ________________ 
Building Commissioner      Date 
 
Mass Highway Referral (if required): 
Date Forwarded _________________   _____________________________ 

Signature 
 
Director, Department of Public Works Declaration of Compliance: 
I have inspected the property located at _________________________________ and found the work 
requested on the Application for a Curb Cut dated ________________ to be in compliance with the Board 
of Selectmen Policy #28 - Curb Cut Policy. 
 
________________________________________   ________________ 
Director, Department of Public Works    Date 
 
Building Commissioner Final Approval: 
_______ Approved ______ Disapproved  Certificate of Occupancy ________________ 
 
_______________________________________   ________________ 
Building Commissioner      Date



  
EXHIBIT 2 

 
TOWN OF TRURO  

CURB CUT DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 
 

General:  Any owner of property abutting Town or State roads shall, before beginning any construction, 
make written application to the Board of Selectmen, in duplicate. The application will be accompanied by 
a plan showing the following: 
 
1. Complete plans drawn to scale on the property in question, including the location of property lines 

and all existing driveways, using a scale of no less than 40' = 1". 
 
2. Indication of any drive that is to be altered or closed. 
 
The following additional requirements must be met and agreed upon by the applicant/owner: 
 
1. The applicant must furnish a list of all materials, including any necessary signs, to be part of any 

construction within the Town or State layout. 
 
2. All work and material shall meet the standards of the Town of Truro and/or the   
 Mass Highway requirements, if applicable. 

 
3. Any alterations to the original application shall require a new permit. 
 
4. All curb cuts and street approaches will be inspected during and after construction, and the Town 

has the right to stop work until such time as any objectionable conditions are corrected at the 
applicant/owner’s expense. 

 
5. The cost of any/all construction and maintenance of any work to take place within the Town or 

State layout; all materials and labor; and any work specified and approved by the Board of 
Selectmen, shall be borne by the applicant/owner, their grantees, successors and assignees. 

 
Design and Construction Requirements: 
 
Driveways should be located to the best advantage with regard to the road alignment, profile, sight 
distance conditions, road safety, and so forth. 
 
The standards call for not more than one (1) curb cut for any one property.  A variance may be granted by 
the Board of Selectmen, subject to an individual need. 
 
The radius of a private driveway may not extend beyond the private owner’s property line without the 
abutting owner’s written consent. 
 
All driveways or private road entrances or exits shall be hot mixed and bermed, oiled, or hardened with 
such materials to the road/property sideline so as to prevent erosion of such driveway/private road entrance 
or exit which would cause sand or material to be washed onto Town or State roads.  This should be 
completed as soon as possible, weather permitting. 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

                              Agenda Item: 6A2 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: (508) 349-7004 Fax: (508) 349-5505 
 

POLICY MEMORANDUM #28 
 

  Date: Adopted June 6, 2000, revised 9/22/04, 2/28/06, 6/13/06, 10/13/07, June 14, 2022 
Subject: CURB CUT POLICY 

 
1. Purpose  

 This Policy aims to protect public safety (including safe passage for emergency vehicles and personnel), 
and to protect Town roads and infrastructure, with respect to the location and use of curb cuts on Town- and 
State-owned roads.  

   
2. Applicability  

 All new curb cuts off of a Town or State-owned roads, and all alterations of existing curb cuts off such 
roads, shall require a Curb Cut Permit.  This includes curb cuts associated with new construction; curb cuts 
absent new construction; and new curb cuts on lots with existing curb cuts (relocation). 
 
 Permits for Curb Cuts on Town roads are issued by the Select Board following Town Department 
review.   Permits for Curb Cuts on State-owned roads are referred to the Massachusetts Department of 
Transportation for review and approval.  

  
3. Prerequisite to issuance of building permit and certificate of occupancy 

 Where a curb cut is proposed on a Town or State road, a Curb Cut Permit must be obtained prior to 
application for a building permit for construction on the subject lot.  No certificate of occupancy shall issue 
unless all conditions of the Curb Cut Permit have been met as certified by the Director of Public Works to the 
Building Commissioner. 
 

4. Procedure 

• Prior to performing commencing any work on a curb cut onto a Town- or State-owned road, the property 
owner or representative shall submit a completed Curb Cut Permit application to the Building 
Department, together with the following materials:  
 

o Complete plans of subject property (engineered; stamped; scale no less than 1” = 40’), showing 
property lines; topography; existing and proposed driveway(s); and grade of driveway to be 
served by curb cut;   
 

o List of materials; 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

                              Agenda Item: 6A2 

 
o Explanation/illustration of means and methods for construction, stormwater management and 

erosion control.  
 

• Copies of the application shall be distributed to Town Departments for review, comment and 
approval/disapproval.  

 
• The Director of Public Works shall review the application and all Department comments; indicate 

approval/disapproval of the application; and submit to the Town Manager with any comments or 
recommendations.   
 

• The Town Manager shall review the application and all Department and DPW Director comments; 
indicate approval/disapproval of the application, and submit to the Select Board with any comments or 
recommendations.  

 
• The Select Board shall, following review of the application and Department comments, approve or 

disapprove the curb cut, imposing on an approval any conditions deemed necessary for public safety 
and/or the protection of Town property.    
 

• The Director of Public Works may inspect a curb cut under construction and may stop work for any 
violation of Policy standards or any conditions of approval.  
 

• The Director of Public Works shall inspect the completed curb cut and certify its compliance with 
applicable standards and any conditions of approval.  
 

• All curb cuts must be completed within one year off approval.  Upon written request, an extension may 
be granted by the Director of Public Works.   
 

• The Select Board may waive any requirement of this policy, where such waiver is consistent with public 
safety and will pose no threat to Town property, imposing any conditions necessary to protect the same.  

 
Modifications to existing curb cuts 
 

• All modifications to existing curb cuts require the submittal of a complete Curb Cut Application.   
 

• The Director of Public Works is authorized to approve alterations to existing curb cuts (i.e., without 
approval of Select Board) following a modified review process. 

 
5. Standards 

 
General 

 
A. One (1) curb cut is permitted on each property.  The Select Board may grant a variance from this limit 

upon demonstration of site-specific need.  



 

3 | P a g e  
 

                              Agenda Item: 6A2 

 
B. Curb cuts and driveways shall be located to maximize safety for entrance to and exit from the property, 

considering factors of grade, road alignment, profile, and sight distance conditions.  
 

C. All curb cuts shall be located and constructed so as to preclude: 
 

• damage to any Town or State road during or after construction. 
• stormwater runoff onto any Town or State road; 
• deposit of sand, soils or other materials onto any Town or State road; 
• any other potential hazard to public safety or Town property as may be identified by the Director of 

the Department of Public Works, Building Commissioner, Chief of Police, and/or Fire Chief.  
 

Grade 
 

• Driveways served by curb cuts shall have a grade not to exceed 15%. 
 

• The driveway must be constructed on a negative grade from the edge of the hardened surface of access 
road to the access road layout line and graded in such a manner that no ponding of water occurs within 
the access road layout.  The applicant shall be responsible for the disposal of all surface water from the 
development and its roads. 

 
Radius 
 

• The radius of a private driveway may not extend beyond the private owner’s property line without the 
written consent of the abutting property owner. 

Material 
 

• All driveways or private road entrances and exists shall be hot mixed and bermed, oiled, or hardened 
with such materials to the road/property sideline so as to prevent erosion of such driveway/private access 
road entrances/exits which would cause sand or other material to be washed onto Town or State roads.  
This should be completed as soon as possible, weather permitting 
 

Sight distances  [from subdivision regulations] 
 

• For Driveways, the sight distance in each direction shall not be less than three hundred (300) feet; 
however, when intersecting Route 6, the sight distance in each direction shall be no less than four 
hundred seventy-five (475) feet.  

 
Clearing of vegetation [from General Bylaws] 
 
 For driveways in excess of fifty (50) feet in length, the following standards shall be met:  
 

• The traveled way of any driveway shall be no less than eight (8) feet wide 
 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

                              Agenda Item: 6A2 

• The combined traveled way and clearance of any obstacles including vegetation shall be no less than 
(14) feet. (8’ wide driveway 3’ clearing on either side of driveway)     
 

• Height clearance shall be no less than fourteen (14) feet from the road surface. 
 

Erosion Control [from subdivision regulations] 
 

• Stripping of vegetation, soil removal, and regrading shall be accomplished so as to minimize erosion 

 
• Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be used to protect exposed areas during construction 

 
• Permanent (final) vegetation and mechanical measure to stabilize the land surface and control erosion 

shall be installed as soon as practicable after construction ends 

 
6. Costs to property owner 

 
• The cost of any construction taking place within the Town or State layout shall be borne by the property 

owner(s) and any successors in interest.  
 

• The cost of any repairs to Town property caused during construction of the curb cut, and/or caused by 
failure to comply with this Policy or any conditions of curb cut approval, shall be borne by the property 
owner(s) and/or any successors in interest.  

 

7. Enforcement   
  

Failure to comply with this Policy shall result in one or more of the following actions: 

• A refusal by the Building Department to issue a building permit and/or certificate of occupancy;  
 

• A request to Massachusetts Department of Transportation for disapproval of an owner/applicant’s 
request for a permit to enter a State road. 

 

        Kristen Reed, Chair                                                   Robert Weinstein, Vice-Chair 
 
 

  John Dundas, Clerk  Susan Areson 
 
 

Stephanie Rein  
Select Board  

Town of Truro



 

5 | P a g e  
 

                              Agenda Item: 6A2 

TOWN OF TRURO 
APPLICATION FOR A CURB CUT PERMIT 

Note: This permit application must be accompanied by a plan. If this permit is being applied for by someone 
other than the Owner of the property, the owner’s signature must appear at the bottom of the application. 

 
Date:    

 
To the Select Board 
24 Town Hall Road 
P. O. Box 2030 
Truro, MA 02666 

 
Re: APPLICATION FOR A CURB CUT 

 
Dear Board Members: 

 
The applicant(s) hereby make application for a curb cut as follows: 

 
Owners Name(s) (Please Print): _____________________________________________________  
 
Address:    
 
Phone Number:________________________________________________________________ 
 
Email Address:________________________________________________________________ 
 
Curb Cut Street Location:    

 
Affected Town or State road:   

 
Truro Assessor’s Map Number:  Parcel Number:    

 
Name of contractor:    
 
Contractor Phone Number: _________________________________________________________ 
 
Contractor Email:________________________________________________________________  

 
Reason/explanation:    

 
I/we hereby agree to the terms and conditions as outlined in this policy and attached Exhibits: 

 
Applicant’s Signature:    

 
Owner’s Signature (if different):  Date:   
 
Owner’s Address (if different):   _________________ 



  

 

FOR TOWN STAFF/BOARD USE ONLY 

PROPERTY ADDRESS ______________________________ 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
6 

Building Commissioner Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved 

Building 
Permit 

Number ____________ 
_____________________________________  __________________ 

Building Commissioner  Date 
Chief of Police Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved _______ 
Not 
Applicable 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Chief of Police  Date 

Fire Chief Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved _______ 
Not 
Applicable 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Fire Chief  Date 

Health & Conservation Agent Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved _______ 
Not 
Applicable 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Health & Conservation Agent  Date 

Public Works Director Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved _______ 
Not 
Applicable 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Public Works Director  Date 

Town Manager Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved  
 
 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Town Manager  Date 

Select Board Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved  
 
 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Select Board Chair  Date 

 

ADDITIONAL APPROVALS (if required) 
 

Planning Board Approval (if required) 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved _______ 
Not 
Applicable 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Planning Board Chair  Date 

Mass Highway Referral (if required) 
Date 

Forwarded __________     
_____________________________________  __________________ 

Signature  Date 
 



  

 

FOR TOWN STAFF/BOARD USE ONLY 

PROPERTY ADDRESS ______________________________ 

 
 
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE/FINAL APPROVAL 
 

Public Works Director Declaration of Compliance 
 

I have inspected the property located at ___________________________________ and found the 
work requested on the Application for a Curb Cut dated ___________________ to be in compliance 

with the Select Board Policy #28 - Curb Cut Policy. 
 

_____________________________________  __________________ 
Public Works Director  Date 

Building Commissioner Final Approval 

_______ Approved _______ Disapproved 
Certificate of 

Occupancy ____________ 
_____________________________________  __________________ 

Building Commissioner  Date 
 



 
 

Agenda Item: 6B  

TOWN OF TRURO 
                     Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT: Administration  
 
REQUESTOR:  John Dundas, Select Board Clerk 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022 
 

ITEM: Discussion on aquaculture license renewals. 
 
EXPLANATION:  The Select Board approved Dana Pazolt’s grants # 1-5 at the May 24, 2022 
meeting, allowing him to continue to work on his shellfish grant which now qualifies for a five 
(5) year lease. Mr. Pazolt was unable to attend the meeting.  Member Dundas asked for Mr. 
Pazolt to attend this meeting in case the Board has any questions they wish to ask. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):   N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Discussion Only. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  None-Discussion Only. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 



 

 

DEPARTMENT: Finance  

 
TOWN OF TRURO 
Select Board Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 7A 

 
REQUESTOR: Alex Marini Lessin, Finance Director: Treasurer/Collector  

 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: June 14, 2022 

 
ITEM: Invitation for Financial Management Review  

 
EXPLANATION: The Town has the opportunity to invite members of the Division of Local Services (DLS) 
Finance Management Resource Bureau to complete a Financial Management Review. The Bureau team has 
assisted more than a dozen municipalities by analyzing current practices and suggesting improvements to 
financial operations. The review is an “opportunity” only and would not impact the Town’s certification of its 
balance sheet, tax recaps, or other state mandated requirements. The process would help capitalize on recent 
structural changes to the Finance department and continue the momentum towards modernization. The initial 
product of the review would include a Finance Management Review report, which would establish a blueprint 
for improvement and set a foundation for the formal policies and procedures manual.  

 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): N/A. Staff time only.  

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: If not approved, the Town will not have the opportunity for a free operational 
review in fiscal 2023.   

 
SUGGESTED ACTION: MOTION TO request that the Division of Local Services complete a Financial 
Management Review for the Town of Truro. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None   

 
1 



                                                                             Agenda Item:  7B 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Department of Public Works  
 
REQUESTOR:   Jarrod J. Cabral, DPW Director  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022  
 
ITEM: Supplemental field investigation and modeling for Truro Center Road culvert crossing on the Pamet 
River system.   
 
EXPLANATION: Previously, the Town, in an agreement with NRCS/USDA, authorized Woods Hole Group to 
conduct a field investigation and preliminary design analysis to develop feasible replacement alternative 
approaches as detailed in the prior report entitled Truro Center Road Field Investigation & Preliminary Design 
Report (WHG, June 2021). The June 2021 Report utilized data and built upon information ascertained from the 
prior U.S. Army Corp of Engineers (USACE) Pamet River Investigation (November 2019). This included utilizing 
the water level measurements and HEC-RAS model to develop and evaluate additional design alternatives.  

During the review of this most recent June 2021 Report with the project partners, additional data and 
knowledge gaps were identified that needed to be addressed before the design(s) could be advanced further 
and prepared for permit applications. This proposal is intended to provide supplemental field and modeling 
data to fill data gaps and help make informative decisions that will advance the design of the replacement 
structure in a subsequent phase of work. This proposal is inclusive of Fuss & O’Neill and Provincetown Center 
for Coastal Studies’ sub-contract services. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): This is a reimbursable grant to the Town funded by the Cape Cod 
Conservation District.  The Town contracts with the Cape Cod Conservation District for reimbursement, and 
the Woods Hole Group for services.                 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Project to replace the culvert at Truro Center Road will not move forward.       

 
SUGGESTED ACTION: MOTION TO authorize the Town Manager to sign the service agreement with the 
Cape Cod Conservation District and the Woods Hole Group proposal for services.     
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Service agreement with Cape Cod Conservation District 
2. Woods Hole Group proposal 

 



Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System 

Agreement   
06072022  

303 Main Street (Route 28), West Yarmouth, MA 02673 

Tel: (508) 771-6476  E-mail: capecodcd@gmail.com 

     web: www.capecodconservationdistrict.com 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the 

Pamet River System 
Cape Cod Water Resources Restoration Project  

Barnstable County, Massachusetts 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Between the  

Cape Cod Conservation District (CCCD) and the Town of Truro 

July 1, 2022 

Introduction 

The Cape Cod Conservation District, hereinafter referred to as (CCCD) has entered into 

agreement with the USDA-Natural Resources Conservation Service to provide project analysis, 

plans and designs for individual projects to work toward implementation of the Cape Cod Water 

Resources Restoration Project (CCWRRP) under the federal Watershed Flood Prevention 

Operations Program (WFPO).  The CCCD is a major project sponsor and coordinates with town 

sponsors to implement projects that meet the objectives of the CCWRRP as approved by 

Congress in 2009.  The CCWRRP broadly focuses on watershed protection and fish and wildlife 

habitat improvement and specifically on projects that restore anadromous fish passage, projects 

that remediate stormwater that improve water quality for shellfish growing areas, and salt marsh 

restoration projects that restore tidal flows to tidally restricted marshes. 

Background 

The Pamet River in Truro, Massachusetts, is an estuarine and freshwater river system consisting 

of three stream branches that meet to form Pamet Harbor before discharging to Cape Cod Bay. 

The main branch of the river system is the Pamet River, which is about 2.5 miles long extending 

from Ballston Beach west to Pamet Harbor and it is divided into two hydrologically separate 

sections by Wilder’s Dike and its associated tide gate (see locus map below). The upper Pamet 

extends from Ballston Beach to Wilder’s Dike and supports a freshwater environment due the 

restricting Wilder’s Dike culvert/flap-gate. The freshwater portion is fed primarily through 

groundwater and surface runoff east of Wilder’s Dike. The portion west of Wilder’s Dike is 

tidally influenced and contains salt marsh characteristics. Wilder’s dike was constructed in 1869 

to replace a wooden bridge that once crossed the Pamet River in this location. The dike includes 

an approximately 4.0-foot diameter culvert with a tide gate system that has been modified and 

replaced numerous times. The tide gate remains open during periods of low tide (allowing the 

upper Pamet to drain) and closes during high tide to prevent tidal flow east of the dike to the 

upper Pamet. The Route 6 embankment and culvert system, located just west of the Wilder’s 

Agenda Item:  7B1

mailto:capecodcd@gmail.com
http://www.capecodconservationdistrict.com/


 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

Dike, was constructed in the 1950s. An open 4.0-foot diameter culvert allows flow through the 

Route 6 embankment east of the dike. The freshwater head of the Pamet River is located directly 

behind Ballston Beach along the Atlantic Ocean. In recent years, there have been numerous 

instances of oceanic overtopping at Ballston Beach leading to adverse flooding impacts to local 

property owners and roadways as the small culverts at the Wilder’s Dike and Rte. 6 restrict 

drainage of sea water from the upper river system to Cape Cod Bay.  The culvert structure at 

Wilders Dike was heavily damaged during the winter 2018 storm season, resulting in sinkholes, 

buckling of the headwall, and destruction of the tide gate (eventually replaced). Storm surge 

from Pamet Harbor even overtopped the roadway during these March 2018 storms, while storm 

wave over wash at Ballston Beach drained into the upper portion of the Pamet River creating 

flooding issues upstream with Atlantic Ocean water. Introduction of saltwater to this upstream 

freshwater system caused vegetation dieback and transition of a portion of this resource to 

saltwater habitat characteristics indicative of the system before the tide gate was installed. The 

evolving landscape provides a salt marsh habitat restoration opportunity. 

Previously, the Town, in an agreement with NRCS, the Woods Hole Group conducted a field 

investigation and preliminary design analysis to develop feasible replacement alternative 

approaches for the Truro Center Road culvert as detailed in the prior report entitled Truro Center 

Road Field Investigation & Preliminary Design Report (WHG, June 2021). The June 2021 

Report utilized data and built upon information ascertained from the prior U.S. Army Corp of 

Engineers (USACE) Pamet River Investigation (November 2019). This included utilizing the 

water level measurements and HEC-RAS model to develop and evaluate additional design 

alternatives. During the review of this most recent June 2021 Report with the project partners, 

additional data and knowledge gaps were identified that needed to be addressed before the 

design(s) could be advanced further and prepared for permit applications. This effort is intended 

to provide supplemental field and modeling data to fill data gaps and help make informative 

decisions that will advance the design of the replacement structure in a subsequent phase of work.  

 

 

 

 

 



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, The CCCD and the Town of Truro, MA do mutually agree as follows: 

Employment of Contractor: The CCCD hereby agrees to engage the Town of Truro to 

secure an A&E firm to provide the services described in the Scope of Work below. 

 

1. Time of Performance: Work shall begin on or about July 1, 2022, and be completed by March 

1, 2023, unless an extension in time is agreed to in writing by both CCCD and Town of Truro. 

 

2. Payment: CCCD shall compensate the Town of Truro a total not exceed $113,636 for services 

provided under the Scope of Services Deliverables.  The Town of Truro shall submit invoices 

quarterly to CCCD, detailing work progress and completed deliverables.  Upon review and 

approval, payment shall be made by CCCD to the Town of Truro within thirty (30) days. 

 

3. Deliverables: All deliverables will be delivered via email, or other method mutually agreed to 

in advance and will be provided in MS Word, MS Excel, or other agreed upon format. 

 

4. Termination or Suspension of Agreement for Cause. If CCCD or the Town of Truro shall fail 

to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this Agreement, or if any party shall violate 

or breach any of the provisions of this Agreement, any party shall thereupon have the right to 

terminate or suspend this Agreement, by giving written notices to the other parties of such 

termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof.  Such notice shall be given at 

least fifteen (15) calendar days before such effective date.  In the event of such termination or 

suspension of the Agreement, the Town of Truro shall be entitled to just and equitable 

compensation for satisfactory work completed in the performance of this Agreement up to and 

including the date of termination or suspension. 

 

5. Interpretation and Severability: If any provision of this Agreement is declared or found to be 

illegal, unenforceable, or void, then all parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that 

provision. The remainder of the Agreement shall be enforced to the fullest extent 

Permitted by law. 

 

6. Modification of the Agreement: CCCD and the Town of Truro may mutually agree in writing 

to a modification (including definition of scope, time of completion and budget for additional 

tasks as/if required) of the agreement at any time during the duration of this contract. 

 
 

Scope of Services/Deliverables 
 

Task 1: Field Investigation 

This task involves various field data collection tasks to fill in data gaps identified during the 

previous phase of work. This data, particularly the tide, salinity, and bathymetric data, will be 

necessary for the modeling in Task 2. Task 1 will include the following four (4) subtasks: 

 

1.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management - An initial kick-off meeting (virtual) will be held 

with the Town and stakeholders to review the contract scope/schedule, clarify coordination items 

with abutters and other project stakeholders/property owners, and discuss current design 

objectives and criteria. This also includes time for two (2) brief project update calls and 



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

communication with the project team and internally amongst Woods Hole Group staff. This 

subtask includes time for project partner Fuss & O’Neill to interact and offer guidance during this 

phase of work. This subtask will also capture the project management, correspondence (emails, 

phone calls, etc.) and invoicing associated with Task 1. Draft meeting minutes will be drafted in a 

memorandum that will be distributed to the project team for review and final meeting minutes 

will be issued within two weeks of receiving comments. 

If attendance at additional remote phone/web conferences and/or in-person meetings at the 

project site or Truro Town hall are required, then these will be provided at the cost presented in 

the budget tables for Optional subtask 1.1A. This task will be executed on an as needed basis at 

the request and advance approval of the Town or regulatory agency. 
 

Task 1.1 Deliverables: Draft & Final Kickoff Meeting Minutes 

 

 

1.2 Salinity and Water Level Data Collection –An identified Task from the prior phase of work 

was to collect supplemental water level and salinity measurements to better understand the tide 

and salinity regime. As such, nine (9) conductivity, temperature, and depth gauges (CTD gauges) 

are proposed to be deployed at key locations to collect the detailed site-specific tidal information 

necessary to accurately model the hydraulics and hydrology of the Pamet River system as shown 

in Figure 3. These locations are considered approximate, and the exact locations will be 

determined based on discussions with project partners and on field fit including. A brief 

description of each station and the reasoning is provided below: 

 

One (1) CTD deployed in Pamet Harbor to understand downstream boundary conditions. 

One (1) CTD deployed in the lower portion of the Pamet River but upstream of the railroad berm 

to understand its potential influence. 

One (1) CTD deployed immediately downstream of Truro Center Rd to understand forcing tides 

and salinity at the tide gate. 

Two (2) CTDs deployed at each headwall between Truro Center Rd and Route 6 to understand the 

changes in tides and salinity across this Phragmites-choked section of river channel. 

One (1) CTD deployed upstream of the Route 6 headwall to understand the tide and salinity 

dampening under Route 6; 

One (1) CTD midway between Route 6 and the Ballston Beach. 

One (1) CTD deployed near the over wash area at Ballston Beach near the head of the Pamet 

River to capture over wash and conditions at the headwaters; and 

One (1) CTD deployed at the East Harbor outfall nearby to capture the open ocean tidal forcing in 

Cape Cod Bay (not shown). 

 

The CTD gauges will record continuous water level, salinity data, and temperature every 6 

minutes for a minimum of a 30-day lunar tidal cycle. Each CTD gauge will be surveyed using a 

Real Time Kinematic Global Positioning System (RTK GPS) to locate it in real world 

coordinates and reference the water level data to a common datum (e.g., NAVD88 in feet). The 

CTD gauges will be recovered, and the data downloaded to provide input data for model 

development in Task 2. An Electronic Data Deliverable (EDD) will be issued that contains the 

time series for the tide, salinity, and temperature data along with data statistics and calculated 

tidal datums. 

 



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

Task 1.2 Deliverables: Tide, salinity, & temperature time series, data statistics, & tidal 

datums (to be included with Subtask 1.4 deliverables) in various formats (*.txt., *.csv, etc.) 

 
1.3 Bathymetric Data Collection – Previously, topographic survey data was collected in the 

vicinity of Truro Center Rd, Route 6, and the river system between while LIDAR data was used 

to fill in the gaps. However, bathymetric data was not collected outside of the immediate vicinity 

of the road crossings and LIDAR data does not adequately capture the subtidal marsh and river 

channels. Therefore, bathymetric survey data is proposed to be collected throughout the Pamet 

River to augment these data sets as shown in Figure 4. These data will be important not only to 

accurately describe the physical characteristics of the site but will be important input parameters 

to the hydrodynamic modeling (Task 2). Woods Hole Group has enlisted the services of the 

Provincetown Center for Coastal Studies (CCS) who will utilize their specialized watercraft and 

echosounder configuration (Figure 5) to aid in collection of this data where draft is sufficient, 

and an example of their bathymetric data products is shown in Figure 6 (a copy of CCS proposal 

is provided). In areas where the river channel is too shallow, narrow, or obstructed for their craft 

to navigate (such as the middle reach between Route 6 and Truro Center Rd), a canoe equipped 

with an RTK GPS and single beam sonar will be employed to conduct the remaining upstream 

survey. The bathymetric survey data will be combined in a single data set that that will be used 

for the modeling and shared with the client and stakeholders in various formats (*.txt, *.csv, 

etc.). 
 

Task 1.3 Deliverables: Bathymetry data in various formats (*.txt, *.csv, etc.) to be included with 

report in Subtask 1.4 

 
 1.4 Field Investigation Report & Project Review – The results of field investigations will be 

provided in a narrative report documenting the findings of the field investigation with graphics, 

figures, tables, statistics, tidal datums, and laboratory results. Woods Hole Group will prepare a 

Draft version of the report that will be distributed among the Town, NRCS, and stakeholders for 

review and comment. The Woods Hole Group project staff will then attend a Final Project Review 

meeting with the Town and project partners to discuss the Draft report and gather comments and 

feedback. A Final version of the report will be issued within 2 weeks after receiving and 

addressing comments and feedback from this meeting (assuming comments are not extensive). 

This Task includes time for project partner Fuss & O’Neill to provide review of the report and 

offer insights regarding the implications for the phase of work that will include final engineering 

design and permitting. 

 

Task 1.4 Deliverables: Draft & Final Report and electronic data deliverables for 1.2 & 1.3 

 

  



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

 
Task 2: Hydrodynamic Modeling 

To better understand the physical processes (both currently and into the future) within the Pamet 

River system, a high-resolution hydrodynamic model will provide the technical basis for 

making decisions to improve the hydrodynamics and salinity regime within the upper reaches of 

the Pamet River and allow for the evaluation of how conditions may be expected to evolve in the 

future. The model results will be able to inform stakeholders about the potential restoration levels 

(salinity and water levels) from proposed alternatives, habitat evolution through time, provide 

design guidance for design and permitting, and evaluate the effects of sea level rise on the 

existing system and alternatives that improve the long-term resiliency of the system. Previously, 

Woods Hole Group utilized HEC-RAS 1-D, a cross section-based model approach using a model 

developed by USACE, to simulate existing conditions and the potential replacement alternatives 

shown in Table 1 from the June 2021 WHG Report. 

 

Table 1. Simulated Cases by Woods Hole Group using the HEC-RAS 1-D model developed by 

the USACE as detailed in the June 2021 Report. 
 

Alternative # Description Replacement at Truro 

Center Rd 

Replacement at 

Route 6 

1 Existing Conditions / Status Quo No No 

2 4’x16’ Culvert with tide gate Yes Yes 

2A 4’x16’ Culvert with tide gate Yes No 

3 4’x16’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes Yes 

3A 4’x16’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes No 

4 Clear span bridge Yes Yes 

4A Clear span bridge Yes No 

5 Twin 8’x10’ Culvert with tide gate Yes Yes 

5A Twin 8’x10’ Culvert with tide gate Yes No 

6 Twin 8’x10’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes Yes 

6A Twin 8’x10’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes No 

 

While HEC-RAS 1-D performed well for simulating the water level changes that are expected to 

occur within the system, it does not have the ability to simulate the salinity regime processes. It 

also does not account for any changes to topography and bathymetry that exists between cross 

sections meaning that reduces the sensitivity of a model. Therefore, it is anticipated that 

Environmental Fluid Dynamics Code (EFDC), or similar, will be utilized for this effort but the 

actual model selected for the Pamet River System will be chosen cooperatively with the project 

team to ensure the model selected is the best fit for answering key project questions and goals. 

Woods Hole Group utilizes and develops state-of-science models and graphical presentation 

tools to simulate all river, estuary, coastal and oceanographic processes on a regular basis; 

however, some models are more appropriate for some sites/projects than others. Woods Hole 

Group is unmatched in our ability to evaluate, justify, and select the most technically appropriate 

and accurate numerical model for utilization in a project. We often work directly with the model 

developers to enhance model performance and provide unique additional capabilities, and in 

many cases develop our own in-house models and presentation tools. The specific modeling scope 

of work is outlined in more detail below. The proposed approach is flexible and will include 

coordination with stakeholders to determine next steps. 

 



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

The model will be an utilize the results of the Massachusetts Coast Flood Risk Model (MC-FRM) 

to provide model input for extreme water level (storm surge) and future sea level rise. While the 

MC-FRM has modeled Pamet River System from a future SLR perspective, the focus of MC-

FRM is inundation risk of upland infrastructure and does not include the details of the marsh 

(channels, berms, etc.) nor does its model salinity advection and dispersion (an important aspect 

of marsh health). While Pamet River System may be a critical element of reducing flood risk for 

adjacent upland areas, the details of the marsh are not resolved to a great extent since it is 

expected to be underwater during storm events. As such, the modeling proposed herein will 

draw upon the present and future storm conditions of MC-FRM with a more detailed 

hydrodynamic and salinity transport focus on the Pamet River System. This is the same approach 

that Woods Hole Group has used in other marsh assessment and restoration projects (e.g., Great 

Marsh on the North Shore). Task 2 will consist of the following four (4) subtasks: 
 

2.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management - An initial kick-off meeting (virtual) will be held 

with the Town and stakeholders to review the contract scope/schedule, clarify coordination items 

with abutters and other project stakeholders/property owners, and discuss current design 

objectives and criteria. This also includes time for two (2) brief project update calls and 

communication with the project team and internally amongst Woods Hole Group staff. This 

subtask includes time for project partner Fuss & O’Neill to interact and offer guidance during this 

phase of work. This task will also capture the project management, correspondence (emails, 

phone calls, etc.) and invoicing associated with Task 2. Draft meeting minutes will be drafted in 

a memorandum that will be distributed to the project team for review and final meeting minutes 

will be issued within two weeks of receiving comments. 

If attendance at additional remote phone/web conferences and/or in-person meetings at the 

project site or Truro Town hall are required, then these will be provided at the cost presented in 

the budget tables for Optional subtask 1.1A. This subtask will be executed on an as needed basis 

at the request and advance approval of the Town or regulatory agency. 

 

Task 2.1 Deliverables: draft and final Meeting Minutes 

 

2.2 Hydrodynamic and Salinity Model for Baseline Conditions – This task involves the model 

setup and calibration/validation of a high-resolution 2-D model for the existing Pamet River 

System. It is expected the model will include both hydrodynamic processes and the modeling of 

salinity throughout the system, like the model that Woods Hole Group developed and 

implemented for the Herring River system in Wellfleet. The creation of the model will involve 

the following tasks: 

Model Domain Setup – Establish model domain (mesh) and integrate the collected topography 

and bathymetry data along with the latest available Digital Elevation Data (DEM) sets. 

Define boundary conditions and data inputs: 

The collected tide and salinity data will be used to force the model from its offshore boundary 

condition (Pamet Inlet) and establish starting water levels at other collected tide and salinity 

stations (Task 2) throughout the system. 

Surface Water Input – The Pamet River watershed is generally small, 7.6 square miles, as the 

surrounding river valley is narrow and steep. There are not significant sources of freshwater 

discharge to from either feeder streams or drainage culverts. An inspection of the creek channels 

and culverts that feed the Pamet River, 3 on the north side and 1 on the south side, found that 

they do not contribute significantly under normal base flow conditions since none were flowing 

after a rainfall. 



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

Groundwater Input – A groundwater recharge rate will be applied within the model domain to 

represent groundwater input as a boundary condition. The USACE calculated the groundwater 

recharge rates to the Pamet River ranging from 17.5 to 25.4 in/yr., which was utilized in their 

modeling. The Woods Hole Group will first conduct a sensitivity analysis to evaluate the effect 

of applying this groundwater input to the Pamet River system. Generally, these recharge rates 

are very small when compared to normal flow and tidal flow conditions within the Pamet River 

especially under restored tidal conditions. 

Model Calibration/Validation – Calibrate the model to existing, normal conditions (Alternative 

#1 in Table 1) and validate with water level and salinity data collected throughout the system 

under Task 2. Accuracy and precision of the model will be described using statistical parameters 

such as Root Mean Squared Error (RSME) or Mean Absolute Error (MAE). 

Storm Scenarios – Once the model has been developed and calibrated for existing conditions and 

normal tides, then the extreme conditions (storm scenarios) will be simulated using output from 

MC-FRM storm scenarios. It is anticipated this will include simulating the following storm 

conditions: 

 Extreme storm surge event moving upstream from the ocean forcing boundary condition 

in Cape Cod Bay, 

 Extreme storm over washing event to the head of the river at Ballston Beach, and 

 Extreme rainfall events. Rainfall will be entered as a rain on model grid that captures the 

entire watershed. 

The exact storm levels and combinations will be determined during discussions with the client 

and stakeholders. This will allow us to understand the ability of the existing system to convey 

extreme storm flows both upriver and downriver and evaluate residence times and drainage 

ability. 

Future Sea Level Rise – The effect of future sea level rise affecting both normal and storm 

conditions will be modeled using output from MC-FRM scenarios to understand potential future 

changes to water levels and salinity within the system for existing conditions. The scenarios to be 

simulated will be decided upon with the project partners and stakeholders. 
 

Task 2.2 Deliverables: Model output files discussed in subtask 2.4 and to be delivered with report 

in 2.5. 

 

2.3 Alternative Simulations – Once the model is calibrated and validated for existing conditions 

(Alternative 1 / Status Quo), then five (5) restoration alternatives (some of the alternatives may 

be from Table 1 above) will be simulated to understand proposed changes to the tide and salinity 

regime within the Pamet River System. The specific alternatives chosen will be decided upon 

with the Town, NRCS, CCCD and stakeholders depending upon schedule and available budget. 

(If additional Alternatives are requested to be simulated, then a cost will be provided for the 

additional effort) Each numbered alternative is composed of both a base case, where the same 

alternative is applied the both the Route 6 and Truro Center Rd crossings, and a sister case, 

denoted by an “A”, where the alternative is only applied at Truro Center Rd. The reason for this 

is that the Town owns Truro Center Rd while Mass DOT owns Route 6, and the projects may be 

staggered since the Town intends to proceed sooner due to the failing road infrastructure. 

Therefore, there is a need to understand the impacts of a potential interim phase where only 

Truro Center Rd is replaced to ensure that there are no additional impacts that must be designed 

or mitigated for. 

Of the five (5) total alternatives expected to be modeled, it is anticipated that for each Alternative 

chosen that both the base and its sister case will be simulated with each counting as one (1) 



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

separate Alternative (2 total). For instance, if Alternative 4 the clear span bridge is selected, then 

Woods Hole Group would recommend simulating two alternatives including 1) replacement at 

both Truro Center Rd and Route 6 as one Alternative and 2) replacement t Truro Center Rd only 

as a second alternative. This will allow the project team to properly evaluate the differences 

between replacing one or both culverts since the prior HEC-RAS 1-D modeling suggested that 

there were substantial differences. Additionally, the Town may replace the Truro Center Rd 

crossing before MassDOT replaces the Route 6 crossing so understanding the staggered 

replacement of the crossings to property and habitat is important. 

Each chosen Alternative will be simulated for normal tides and storm conditions (both surge and 

over washing) in both present and future day (incorporating sea level rise). The results of the 

modeling simulations will be documented for review in Task 2.4 to allow for stakeholders to 

better understand the system. Results will include: 

Water surface elevation and salinity time-series at specified locations within the model domain. 

Wetting and drying of intertidal regions. 

Salinity distribution throughout the floodplain. 

Extent of flooding throughout the system under different sea level conditions; and 

Channel velocities. 

 

Task 2.3 Deliverables: Model output files discussed in subtask 2.4 and to be delivered with report 

in 2.5. 

 

2.4 Processing Results & Interpretation: The results of modeling will be post-processed to 

generate various Electronic Data Deliverables (EDDs) since EFDC does not have an interface that 

allows for the user to view the output data or create final data products directly. Python will be 

utilized to convert the raw EFDC output files to a format usable for the creation visualizations in 

SMS and ArcGIS to best represent and communicate the meaning of the model results. Direct 

model output can be provided in a variety of formats such as *.data, *.txt, *.csv, netCDF, etc., 

and the exact formats will be decided upon prior to the delivery of the final reports. 

Visualizations of the data will be provided both in their final graphical format (*.tiff, *.png, etc.) 

and digital format (*.shp, *.kmz, etc.) to allow for the client and stakeholders to view the data in 

more detail. The EDDs will be delivered using a either an ftp server or shareable folder to allow 

for the client and stakeholders to have easy access to the files. 

 

Task 2.4 Deliverables: Electronic Data Deliverables (EDDs) including model output files (*.txt, 

etc.) and visualization in both graphical (*.tiff, etc.) and digital (*.shp, etc.) formats delivered 

with report in subtask 2.5. 
 

2.5 Reporting & Project Review: The results of modeling will be provided in a narrative report 

documenting the findings. Visualizations of the model analyses will best represent and 

communicate the meaning of the model results along with impacts of alternatives. Results of the 

existing and proposed simulations in present and future day shall be discussed in terms of how 

the salt marsh may be expected to evolve in the future. Results of the existing conditions and 

alternatives will be presented both using time-series output at selected locations, as well as 2-

dimensional maps representing extents of flooding at various datums. Methodologies and results 

of the modeling effort will be reported, as well as a discussion of how the proposed alternatives 

meet various ecological criteria. Recommendation(s) will be made for a preferred culvert 

replacement structure based on the modeling results. 

 



 
Cape Cod Conservation District / CCWRRP-II 

Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System  

Agreement   
06072022  

A Draft version of the report will be distributed among the Town, NRCS, CCCD and 

stakeholders for review and comment. The A&E project staff will then attend a meeting with the 

Town and project partners to discuss the Draft report and gather comments and feedback. A 

Final version of the report will be issued within 2 weeks after receiving and addressing 

comments and feedback from this meeting (assuming comments are not extensive). This Task 

includes time for project A&E Engineer to review the report and offer insights regarding the 

implications for the phase of work that will include final engineering design and permitting. 

 

Task 2.5 Deliverables: Draft & Final Report with Electronic Data Deliverables in various 

formats 

 

 
  SCHEDULE & BUDGET 

The schedule of services and breakdown of the budget and schedule by task are provided in the 

table below. The total budget for identified deliverables is not to exceed $113,636. 

 

Table 2. Scope and Budget. 
 

Task Description Total Task /subtask Duration 
1 Field Investigation $ 42,326 3 months 

1.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management $ 6,160  

1.2 Tide & Salinity Study (30-60 days) $ 10,590  

1.3 Bathymetric Survey $ 16,946  

1.4 Field Investigation Report & Project Review Meeting $ 8,630  

2 Hydrodynamic Tide & Salinity Modeling $ 71,310 7 months 

2.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management $ 6,160  

2.2 Model Development & Existing Conditions $ 28,480  

2.3 Model Five (5) Select Alternatives $ 22,270  

2.4 Process Results & Interpretation $ 4,910  

2.5 Modeling Reporting & Project Review Meeting $ 9,490  

TOTAL Base Scope $ 113,636 10 months 

 

 
 

Authorization to Proceed: 
 
Signers:       Date: 
 
 

Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager, Town of Truro 
 
 
 
 

Mark Forest, Chair, Cape Cod Conservation District 
 



June 7, 2022 Prop. No. 2018-0190 

Sent by Electronic Mail 

Mr. Jarrod Cabral, Director 
Department of Public Works 
Town of Truro 
P.O. Box 2030 
Truro, MA  02666 
Email:  jcabral@truro-ma.gov 
Tel:  (774) 722-3747 

cc: Stephen Spear, NRCS stephen.spear@usda.gov 
Rick DeVergilio, CCCD rdevergilio@comcast.net 

RE: Scope of Services for a Supplemental Field Investigation and Modeling 
for Truro Center Rd Crossing on the Pamet River System. 

Dear Mr. Cabral, 

Woods Hole Group has prepared the following scope of services proposal for providing supplemental field 
investigation and computer modeling services needed to advance the design of the replacement structure for the 
“Wilders Dike” culvert under Truro Center Road (TCR) and the greater Pamet River system. Presently, Wilders Dike 
consists of a 48-inch diameter culvert that hydraulically connects the Pamet River underneath Truro Center Road 
(Figure 1) in the Town of Truro (Town), Massachusetts (Figure 2). The Pamet River originates east of Route 6 near 
Ballston Beach flowing westward under Route 6 and Truro Center Road before draining into Pamet Harbor and 
subsequently Cape Cod Bay (Figure 3). A tide gate on the downstream (western) end of the culvert provides the 
primary means of tidal control on the Pamet River, also causing the upper portion of Pamet River upstream of 
Truro Center Road to be freshwater by restricting tidal flow from Pamet Harbor.   

The culvert structure at Wilders Dike was heavily damaged during the winter 2018 storm season, resulting in 
sinkholes, buckling of the headwall, and destruction of the tide gate (eventually replaced). Storm surge from 
Pamet Harbor even overtopped the roadway during these March 2018 storms, while storm wave overwash at 
Ballston Beach drained into the upper portion of the Pamet River creating flooding issues upstream with Atlantic 
Ocean water. Introduction of saltwater to this upstream freshwater system caused vegetation dieback and 
transition of a portion of this resource to saltwater habitat characteristics indicative of the system before the tide 
gate was installed. The Town is concerned that this archaic, poorly built culvert structure will fail during a 
subsequent large storm, causing severe upstream flooding and either severe damage to or destruction of the road.  
The evolving landscape also provides a salt marsh habitat restoration opportunity.   

Agenda Item:  7B2



 

 

Figure 1. Photo showing the downstream view of Wilder’s Dike culvert & flap gate at Truro Center Road over the Pamet River.  

 

Figure 2. Truro Center Road / Wilders Dike location with culvert location shown by red star and wetland resources outlined in yellow. 



 

Previously, the Town, in an agreement with NRCS, authorized Woods Hole Group to conduct a field investigation 
and preliminary design analysis to develop feasible replacement alternative approaches as detailed in the prior 
report entitled Truro Center Road Field Investigation & Preliminary Design Report (WHG, June 2021). The June 
2021 Report utilized data and built upon information ascertained from the prior U.S. Army Corp of Engineers 
(USACE) Pamet River Investigation (November 2019). This included utilizing the water level measurements and 
HEC-RAS model to develop and evaluate additional design alternatives. During the review of this most recent June 
2021 Report with the project partners, additional data and knowledge gaps were identified that needed to be 
addressed before the design(s) could be advanced further and prepared for permit applications. This proposal is 
intended to provide supplemental field and modeling data to fill data gaps and help make informative decisions 
that will advance the design of the replacement structure in a subsequent phase of work. This proposal is inclusive 
of Fuss & O’Neill and Provincetown Center for Coastal Studies’ sub-contract services. 

SCOPE OF WORK 
The proposed interim Scope of Work (SOW) detailed herein will advance the previously completed scope of 
services by generating information needed to advance the design and permitting of a replacement structure a 
future phase of work. The Woods Hole Group currently proposes the following two (2) primary tasks including 
Task 1 Field Investigation and Task 2 Hydrodynamic Modeling:  

Task 1: Field Investigation  
This task involves various field data collection tasks to fill in data gaps identified during the previous phase of work. 
This data, particularly the tide, salinity, and bathymetric data, will be necessary for the modeling in Task 2. Task 1 
will include the following five (5) subtasks:  

1.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management - An initial kick-off meeting (virtual) will be held with the Town 
and stakeholders to review the contract scope/schedule, clarify coordination items with abutters and 
other project stakeholders/property owners, and discuss current design objectives and criteria. This also 
includes time for two (2) brief project update calls and communication with the project team and internally 
amongst Woods Hole Group staff. This subtask includes time for project partner Fuss & O’Neill to interact 
and offer guidance during this phase of work. This subtask will also capture the project management, 
correspondence (emails, phone calls, etc.) and invoicing associated with Task 1. Draft meeting minutes will 
be drafted in a memorandum that will be distributed to the project team for review and final meeting 
minutes will be issued within two weeks of receiving comments.  

If attendance at additional remote phone/web conferences and/or in-person meetings at the project site 
or Truro Town hall are required, then these will be provided at the cost presented in the budget tables for 
Optional subtask 1.1A. This task will be executed on an as needed basis at the request and advance 
approval of the Town or regulatory agency.  
 
Task 1.1 Deliverables: Draft & Final Kickoff Meeting Minutes  

 
1.2 Salinity and water level data collection – Previously, the USACE collected long term water level 
measurements upstream of Route 6, downstream of Truro Center Rd, and between the two roads, 
however, salinity data was not collected. Therefore, an identified Task from the prior phase of work was 
to collect supplemental water level and salinity measurements to better understand the tide and salinity 
regime. As such, nine (9) conductivity, temperature, and depth gauges (CTD gauges) are proposed to be 
deployed at key locations to collect the detailed site-specific tidal information necessary to accurately 
model the hydraulics and hydrology of the Pamet River system as shown in Figure 3. These locations are 



 

considered approximate, and the exact locations will be determined based on discussions with project 
partners and on field fit including. A brief description of each station and the reasoning is provided below: 

• One (1) CTD deployed in Pamet Harbor to understand downstream boundary conditions; 
• One (1) CTD deployed in the lower portion of the Pamet River but upstream of the railroad berm 

to understand its potential influence; 
• One (1) CTD deployed immediately downstream of Truro Center Rd to understand forcing tides 

and salinity at the tide gate.  
• Two (2) CTDs deployed at each headwall between Truro Center Rd and Route 6 to understand the 

changes in tides and salinity across this Phragmites-choked section of river channel; 
• One (1) CTD deployed upstream of the Route 6 headwall to understand the tide and salinity 

dampening under Route 6; 
• One (1) CTD midway between Route 6 and the Ballston Beach; 
• One (1) CTD deployed near the overwash area at Ballston Beach near the head of the Pamet River 

to capture overwash and conditions at the headwaters; and 
• One (1) CTD deployed at the East Harbor outfall nearby to capture the open ocean tidal forcing in 

Cape Cod Bay (not shown).  
 

 
Figure 3. Proposed 8 CTD Gauge Locations deployed on the Pamet River and a 9th at the East Harbor Outfall nearby (not shown). 

The CTD gauges will record continuous water level, salinity data, and temperature every 6 minutes for a 
minimum of a 30-day lunar tidal cycle. Each CTD gauge will be surveyed using a Real Time Kinematic Global 
Positioning System (RTK GPS) to locate it in real world coordinates and reference the water level data to 
a common datum (e.g. NAVD88 in feet). The CTD gauges will be recovered and the data downloaded to 
provide input data for model development in Task 2. An Electronic Data Deliverable (EDD) will be issued 
that contains the time series for the tide, salinity, and temperature data along with data statistics and 
calculated tidal datums.  
 
Task 1.2 Deliverables: Tide, salinity, & temperature time series, data statistics, & tidal datums (to be 
included with Subtask 1.4 deliverables) in various formats (*.txt., *.csv, etc.) 
 
1.3 Bathymetric data collection – Previously, topographic survey data was collected in the vicinity of Turro 
Center Rd, Route 6, and the river system between while LIDAR data was used to fill in the gaps. However, 



 

bathymetric data was not collected outside of the immediate vicinity of the road crossings and LIDAR data 
does not adequately capture the subtidal marsh and river channels. Therefore, bathymetric survey data 
is proposed to be collected throughout the Pamet River to augment these data sets as shown in Figure 4.  
These data will be important not only to accurately describe the physical characteristics of the site but will 
be important input parameters to the hydrodynamic modeling (Task 2). Woods Hole Group has enlisted 
the services of the Provincetown Center for Coastal Studies (CCS) who will utilize their specialized 
watercraft and echosounder configuration (Figure 5) to aid in collection of this data where draft is 
sufficient, and an example of their bathymetric data products is shown in Figure 6 (a copy of CCS proposal 
is provided). In areas where the river channel is too shallow, narrow, or obstructed for their craft to 
navigate (such as the middle reach between Route 6 and Truro Center Rd), a canoe equipped with an RTK 
GPS and single beam sonar will be employed to conduct the remaining upstream survey. The bathymetric 
survey data will be combined in a single data set that that will be used for the modeling and shared with 
the client and stakeholders in various formats (*.txt, *.csv, etc.).  
 
Task 1.3 Deliverables: Bathymetry data in various formats (*.txt, *.csv, etc.) to be included with report in 
Subtask 1.4 
 

 
Figure 4. Approximate bathymetric survey extents of the Pamet River for the lower reach (yellow), middle reach between Truro 

Center Rd and Route 6 (red), and upper reach upstream of Route 6 to Ballston Beach.  



 

 
Figure 5. Provincetown Center for Coastal Studies pontoon boat for surveying shallow estuaries. 

 

Figure 6. Example hydrographic map conducted in June 2016 for Herring River by Provincetown Center for Coastal Studies.  



 

1.4 Field Investigation Report & Project Review – The results of field investigations will be provided in a 
narrative report documenting the findings of the field investigation with graphics, figures, tables, 
statistics, tidal datums, and laboratory results. Woods Hole Group will prepare a Draft version of the 
report that will be distributed among the Town, NRCS, and stakeholders for review and comment. The 
Woods Hole Group project staff will then attend a Final Project Review meeting with the Town and project 
partners to discuss the Draft report and gather comments and feedback. A Final version of the report will 
be issued within 2 weeks after receiving and addressing comments and feedback from this meeting 
(assuming comments are not extensive). This Task includes time for project partner Fuss & O’Neill to 
provide review the report and offer insights regarding the implications for the phase of work that will 
include final engineering design and permitting.  
 
Task 1.4 Deliverables: Draft & Final Report and electronic data deliverables for 1.2 & 1.3 

 
Task 2: Hydrodynamic Modeling  
In order to better understand the physical processes (both currently and into the future) within the Pamet River 
system, a high-resolution hydrodynamic model will provide the technical basis for making decisions to improve 
the hydrodynamics and salinity regime within the upper reaches of the Pamet River and allow for the evaluation 
of how conditions may be expected to evolve in the future. The model results will be able to inform stakeholders 
about the potential restoration levels (salinity and water levels) from proposed alternatives, habitat evolution 
through time, provide design guidance for design and permitting, and evaluate the effects of sea level rise on the 
existing system and alternatives that improve the long-term resiliency of the system. Previously, Woods Hole 
Group utilized HEC-RAS 1-D, a cross section-based model approach using a model developed by USACE, to 
simulate existing conditions and the potential replacement alternatives shown in Table 1 from the June 2021 WHG 
Report. 

Table 1.  Simulated Cases by Woods Hole Group using the HEC-RAS model developed by the 
USACE as detailed in the June 2021 Report. 

Alternative # Description Replacement at 
Truro Center Rd 

Replacement 
at Route 6 

1 Existing Conditions / Status Quo No No 
2 4’x16’ Culvert with tide gate Yes Yes 
2A 4’x16’ Culvert with tide gate Yes No 
3 4’x16’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes Yes 
3A 4’x16’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes No 
4 Clear span bridge Yes Yes 
4A Clear span bridge Yes No 
5 Twin 8’x10’ Culvert with tide gate Yes Yes 
5A Twin 8’x10’ Culvert with tide gate Yes No 
6 Twin 8’x10’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes Yes 
6A Twin 8’x10’ Culvert; no tide gate Yes No 

 
While HEC-RAS performed well for simulating the water level changes that are expected to occur within the 
system, it does not have the ability to simulate the salinity regime processes. It also does not account for any 
changes to topography and bathymetry that exists between cross sections meaning that reduces the sensitivity of 



 

a model. Therefore, it is anticipated that Environmental Fluid Dynamics Code (EFDC), or similar, will be utilized for 
this effort but the actual model selected for the Pamet River System will be chosen cooperatively with the project 
team to ensure the model selected is the best fit for answering key project questions and goals. Woods Hole Group 
utilizes and develops state-of-science models and graphical presentation tools to simulate all river, estuary, 
coastal and oceanographic processes on a regular basis; however, some models are more appropriate for some 
sites/projects than others. Woods Hole Group is unmatched in our ability to evaluate, justify, and select the most 
technically appropriate and accurate numerical model for utilization in a project. We often work directly with the 
model developers to enhance model performance and provide unique additional capabilities, and in many cases 
develop our own in-house models and presentation tools. The specific modeling scope of work is outlined in more 
detail below. The proposed approach is flexible and will include coordination with stakeholders to determine next 
steps.  
 
The model will be an utilize the results of the Massachusetts Coast Flood Risk Model (MC-FRM) in order to provide 
model input for extreme water level (storm surge) and future sea level rise. While the MC-FRM has modeled 
Pamet River System from a future SLR perspective, the focus of MC-FRM is inundation risk of upland infrastructure, 
and does not include the details of the marsh (channels, berms, etc.) nor does it model salinity advection and 
dispersion (an important aspect of marsh health).  While Pamet River System may be a critical element of reducing 
flood risk for adjacent upland areas, the details of the marsh are not resolved to a great extent since it is expected 
to be underwater during storm events.  As such, the modeling proposed herein will draw upon the present and 
future storm conditions of MC-FRM with a more detailed hydrodynamic and salinity transport focus on the Pamet 
River System. This is the same approach that Woods Hole Group has used in other marsh assessment and 
restoration projects (e.g., Great Marsh on the North Shore). Task 2 will be consist of the following four (4) subtasks: 
 

2.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management - An initial kick-off meeting (virtual) will be held with the Town 
and stakeholders to review the contract scope/schedule, clarify coordination items with abutters and 
other project stakeholders/property owners, and discuss current design objectives and criteria. This also 
includes time for two (2) brief project update calls and communication with the project team and internally 
amongst Woods Hole Group staff. This subtask includes time for project partner Fuss & O’Neill to interact 
and offer guidance during this phase of work. This task will also capture the project management, 
correspondence (emails, phone calls, etc.) and invoicing associated with Task 2. Draft meeting minutes will 
be drafted in a memorandum that will be distributed to the project team for review and final meeting 
minutes will be issued within two weeks of receiving comments. 

If attendance at additional remote phone/web conferences and/or in-person meetings at the project site 
or Truro Town hall are required, then these will be provided at the cost presented in the budget tables for 
Optional subtask 1.1A. This subtask will be executed on an as needed basis at the request and advance 
approval of the Town or regulatory agency.  
 
Task 2.1 Deliverables: draft and final Meeting Minutes  
 
2.2 Develop Hydrodynamic and Salinity Model for Baseline Conditions – This task involves the model setup 
and calibration/validation of a high-resolution 2-D model for the existing Pamet River System. It is 
expected the model will include both hydrodynamic processes and the modeling of salinity throughout 
the system, similar to the model that Woods Hole Group developed and implemented for the Herring 
River system in Wellfleet. The creation of the model will involve the following tasks: 



 

• Model Domain Setup – Establish model domain (mesh) and integrate the collected topography 
and bathymetry data along with the latest available Digital Elevation Data (DEM) sets.  

• Define boundary conditions and data inputs:  
o The collected tide and salinity data will be used to force the model from its offshore 

boundary condition (Pamet Inlet) and establish starting water levels at other collected 
tide and salinity stations (Task 2) throughout the system.  

o Surface Water Input – The Pamet River watershed is generally small, 7.6 square miles, as 
the surrounding river valley is narrow and steep. There are not significant sources of 
freshwater discharge to from either feeder streams or drainage culverts. An inspection of 
the creek channels and culverts that feed the Pamet River, 3 on the north side and 1 on 
the south side, found that they do not contribute significantly under normal base flow 
conditions since none were flowing after a rainfall.  

o Groundwater Input – A groundwater recharge rate will be applied within the model 
domain to represent groundwater input as a boundary condition. The USACE calculated 
the groundwater recharge rates to the Pamet River ranging from 17.5 to 25.4 in/yr, which 
was utilized in their modeling. The Woods Hole Group will first conduct a sensitivity 
analysis to evaluate the effect of applying this groundwater input to the Pamet River 
system. Generally, these recharge rates are very small when compared to normal flow 
and tidal flow conditions within the Pamet River especially under restored tidal 
conditions.  

• Model Calibration/Validation – Calibrate the model to existing, normal conditions (Alternative #1 
in Table 1) and validate with water level and salinity data collected throughout the system under 
Task 2. Accuracy and precision of the model will be described using statistical parameters such as 
Root Mean Squared Error (RSME) or Mean Absolute Error (MAE). 

• Storm Scenarios – Once the model has been developed and calibrated for existing conditions and 
normal tides, then the extreme conditions (storm scenarios) will be simulated using output from 
MC-FRM storm scenarios. It is anticipated this will include simulating the following storm 
conditions: 

o Extreme storm surge event moving upstream from the ocean forcing boundary condition 
in Cape Cod Bay, 

o Extreme storm overwashing event to the head of the river at Ballston Beach, and  
o Extreme rainfall events. Rainfall will be entered as a rain on model grid that captures the 

entire watershed.   
The exact storm levels and combinations will be determined during discussions with the client 
and stakeholders. This will allow us to understand the ability of the existing system to convey 
extreme storm flows both upriver and downriver and evaluate residence times and drainage 
ability.  

• Future Sea Level Rise – The effect of future sea level rise affecting both normal and storm 
conditions will be modeled using output from MC-FRM scenarios to understand potential future 
changes to water levels and salinity within the system for existing conditions. The particular 
scenarios to be simulated will be decided upon with the project partners and stakeholders.  

 
Task 2.2 Deliverables: Model output files discussed in subtask 2.4 and to be delivered with report in 2.5. 

 



 

2.3 Alternative Simulations – Once the model is calibrated and validated for existing conditions 
(Alternative 1 / Status Quo), then five (5) a of the previously developed restoration alternatives shown in 
Table 1 will be simulated to understand proposed changes to the tide and salinity regime within the Pamet 
River System. The specific alternatives chosen will be decided upon with the Town, NRCS, and 
stakeholders depending upon schedule and available budget. Each numbered alternative is composed of 
both a base case, where the same alternative is applied the both the Route 6 and Truro Center Rd 
crossings, and a sister case, denoted by an “A”, where the alternative is only applied at Truro Center Rd. 
The reason for this is that the Town owns Truro Center Rd while MassDOT owns Route 6 and the projects 
may be staggered since the Town intends to proceed sooner due to the failing road infrastructure. 
Therefore, there is a need to understand the impacts of a potential interim phase where only Truro Center 
Rd is replaced to ensure that there are no additional impacts that have to be designed or mitigated for.   
 
Of the five (5) total alternatives expected to be modeled, it is anticipated that for each Alternative chosen 
that both the base and its sister case will be simulated with each counting as one (1) separate Alternative 
(2 total). For instance, if Alternative 4 the clear span bridge is selected, then Woods Hole Group would 
recommend simulating two alternatives including 1) replacement at both Truro Center Rd and Route 6 as 
one Alternative and 2) replacement t Truro Center Rd only as a second alternative. This will allow the 
project team to properly evaluate the differences between replacing one or both culverts since the prior 
HEC-RAS 1-D modeling suggested that there were substantial differences. Additionally, the Town may 
replace the Truro Center Rd crossing before MassDOT replaces the Route 6 crossing so understanding the 
staggered replacement of the crossings to property and habitat is important. Each Alternative will be 
simulated for normal tides and storm conditions (both surge and overwashing) in both present and future 
day (incorporating sea level rise). The results of the modeling simulations will be documented for review 
in Task 2.4 to allow for stakeholders to better understand the system. Results will include: 

• Water surface elevation and salinity time-series at specified locations within the model domain; 
• Wetting and drying of intertidal regions; 
• Salinity distribution throughout the floodplain; 
• Extent of flooding throughout the system under different sea level conditions; and 
• Channel velocities. 

 
Task 2.3 Deliverables: Model output files discussed in subtask 2.4 and to be delivered with report in 2.5. 

 
2.4 Processing Results & Interpretation: The results of modeling will be post-processed to generate 
various Electronic Data Deliverables (EDDs) since EFDC does not have an interface that allows for the user 
to view the output data or create final data products directly. Python will be utilized to convert the raw 
EFDC output files to a format usable for the creation visualizations in SMS and ArcGIS to best represent 
and communicate the meaning of the model results. Direct model output can be provided in a variety of 
formats such as *.dat, *.txt, *.csv, netCDF, etc., and the exact formats will decided upon prior to the 
delivery of the final reports. Visualizations of the data will be provided both in their final graphical format 
(*.tiff, *.png, etc.) and digital format (*.shp, *.kmz, etc.) to allow for the client and stakeholders to view 
the data in more detail. The EDDs will be delivered using a either an ftp server or shareable folder to allow 
for the client and stakeholders to have easy access to the files. 



 

Task 2.3 Deliverables: Electronic Data Deliverables (EDDs) including model output files (*.txt, etc.) and 
visualization in both graphical (*.tiff,  etc.) and digital (*.shp, etc.) formats delivered with report in subtask 
2.5. 
 
2.5 Reporting & Project Review: The results of modeling will be provided in a narrative report 
documenting the findings. Visualizations of the model analyses will best represent and communicate the 
meaning of the model results along with impacts of alternatives. Results of the existing and proposed 
simulations in present and future day will be discussed in terms of how the salt marsh may be expected 
to evolve in the future. Results of the existing conditions and alternatives will be presented both using 
time-series output at selected locations, as well as 2-dimensional maps representing extents of flooding 
at various datums. Methodologies and results of the modeling effort will be reported, as well as a 
discussion of how the proposed alternatives meet various ecological criteria. Recommendation(s) will be 
made for a preferred culvert replacement structure based on the modeling results.  

Woods Hole Group will prepare a Draft version of the report that will be distributed among the Town, 
NRCS, and stakeholders for review and comment. The Woods Hole Group project staff will then attend a 
meeting with the Town and project partners to discuss the Draft report and gather comments and 
feedback. A Final version of the report will be issued within 2 weeks after receiving and addressing 
comments and feedback from this meeting (assuming comments are not extensive). This Task includes 
time for project partner Fuss & O’Neill to provide review the report and offer insights regarding the 
implications for the phase of work that will include final engineering design and permitting.  

Task 2.4 Deliverables: Draft & Final Report with Electronic Data Deliverables in various formats.  
 
BUDGET & SCHEDULE 
The estimated total budget for the scope described above is $113,636 and a breakdown of the budget by task and 
subtask is provided in the Table 2 that follows this section. The following assumptions and exclusions apply to the 
scope of services:  

• Negotiations or coordination for project access or other work affecting adjacent public and private 
properties is not included. It is assumed that the Town will coordinate/negotiate with all abutters on 
whose properties access will be required.   

• Field investigation will be initiated within 2 weeks of receiving authorization proceed. It is anticipated that 
CTD gauges will be deployed for a minimum of 30 days. Equipment costs assume instruments are available 
in house otherwise equipment leasing fees will be passed on to the client with standard markup on 
expenses.  

• Modeling schedule will dependent on obtaining the CTD and bathymetric survey data in a timely manner, 
but it is possible that subtask 2.2 Model Development can be initiated before the field data is received. 

• This scope includes a budget of $22,270 for modeling the five (5) of the ten (10) Alternatives shown in 
Table 1 that will be selected based upon meetings with the client and stakeholders. Each alternative will 
be ran for the same suite of simulations including normal tides, storm conditions, and sea level rise. 
Additional alternatives can be simulated at a cost of $4,456 each.  

If you wish to proceed and prior to any work being started, Woods Hole Group requires receipt of the signed and 
dated “Acceptance and Authorization to Proceed” form at the end of this proposal. We are prepared to proceed 



 

with Phase I within three (3) days of receiving a signed authorization to proceed. The proposal was assembled 
under the assumptions for a time and materials services contract. Realistic budgets for planning purposes were 
estimated based on experience with similar projects and the project to date. Costs will be submitted based on the 
actual time and expenses required to perform the work. Every effort will be made to conserve costs where 
possible. Materials and other direct costs will be invoiced at cost plus our standard markup. These cost estimates 
are inclusive of Fuss & O’Neill, Provincetown Center for Coastal Studies, and other subcontract services, standard 
Woods Hole Group mark-up, and Woods Hole Group labor.  We also can proceed incrementally with key stop 
points along the way if preferred by the Town. In this case, please annotate the authorized phases and/or tasks 
on the signature page along with updated total budget. Invoices will be submitted monthly based upon percent 
complete, and payment is due within 30-days of the invoice date.  Woods Hole Group reserves the opportunity to 
withhold work products or pursue legal action to obtain rightful payment. 
 
Table 2. Proposed Scope and Budget. 

Task Description Total Task /subtask Duration 
1 Field Investigation $ 42,326 3 months 

1.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management $ 6,160  
1.2 Tide & Salinity Study (30-60 days) $ 10,590  
1.3 Bathymetric Survey  $ 16,946  
1.4 Field Investigation Report & Project Review Meeting $ 8,630  

2 Hydrodynamic Tide & Salinity Modeling $ 71,310 7 months 
2.1 Kickoff Meeting & Project Management $ 6,160  
2.2 Model Development & Existing Conditions $ 28,480  
2.3 Model Five (5) Select Alternatives  $ 22,270  
2.4 Process Results & Interpretation $ 4,910   
2.5 Modeling Reporting & Project Review Meeting $ 9,490  

TOTAL Base Scope $ 113,636 10 months 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and look forward to continuing our work together on this 
project.  If there are any questions please contact Robert Hamilton by email at bhamilton@woodsholegroup.com 
or phone at (508) 495-6229, or Mitchell Buck P.E. by email at mbuck@woodsholegroup.com or phone at (508) 
495-6210. 
Sincerely, 

                                               

Robert P. Hamilton, Jr.      Mitchell Buck, P.E. 
President & Coastal Engineer     Coastal Engineer 
The Woods Hole Group, Inc.     The Woods Hole Group Inc.  
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 



 

Acceptance and Authorization to Proceed: 
 
“I authorize Woods Hole Group, Inc. to proceed with the above scope of work for Truro Center Road.” 
 
                              
Client Name                                                                           Date 
 
                              
Woods Hole Group Representative                                       Date 



1 
 

        Agenda Item:  7C 

TOWN OF TRURO 

Select Board Agenda Item  
 

 
BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION:  Select Board 
 
REQUESTOR: Select Board Member-Susan Areson 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: June 14, 2022 
 
ITEM: Board/Committee/Commission Appointment Process 
 
EXPLANATION: Discussion of general board/committee/commission membership and relevant 
questions for those seeking appointment or reappointment. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): None 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   Discussion only 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Possible Motion:  Motion to add the following two questions to the 
application for board/committee members. 

1. Have you read the Select Board’s goals and objectives? 
2. Do you have questions or concerns about any Select Board goals that are relevant to the 

committee on which you are applying to serve?  If so, please elaborate. 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 



  

Truro Select Board  
Tuesday, June 14, 2022 

Regular Meeting-5:00pm 
 
 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature:  
1. Harbor to the Bay MassDOT Event Notification Form 
2. Entertainment Application-Truro Concert Committee 

B. Review and Approve Appointment Renewals: None 
C. Review and Approve 2022 Seasonal Business Licenses: North of Highland Campground-Transient 

Vendor License  
D. Review and Approve Select Board Minutes: Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes of 3.22.2022; 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes of 4.5.2022 
 

 
    

 
 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  May 17, 2022 
 
ITEM:  MassDOT Event Notification Form 
 
EXPLANATION:  Harbor to the Bay submitted an Application for Bike/Road Race which has 
been approved by Department Heads and the Town Manager.  The Select Board is to approve 
the MassDOT Event Notification form which has been signed by Police Chief Calise and Fire 
Chief Collins.  Police Chief Calise has asked that police detail be arranged by the organizer.  The 
date of the ride will be Saturday, September 17, 2022, between 2:00pm and 6:00pm.  The 
route through Truro will be Route 6 from Wellfleet to Highland Road to 6A into Provincetown. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Harbor to the Bay will not have permission to have their riders 
traverse through the Town of Truro.  Alternate routes would need to be designed. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve the MassDOT Event Notification Form and authorize 
the Chair to electronically sign. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Harbor to the Bay road race application and MassDOT Event Notification Form 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  8A1 
 
 
 
 



Consent Agenda Item:  8A1























1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant  

 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Approval of an Entertainment License for Truro Summer Concert Series  
           
EXPLANATION:  MGL Chapter 140 § 181 provides local authority to license performance events.  
Entertainment Application for review and approval is below:  
 

• Truro Summer Concert Series, Lawn behind Truro Public Library, 7 Standish Way, 7/7, 7/14, 7/21, 7/28 
8/4, 8/11 (6:30pm-7:30pm) 8/18, 8/25 (6:00-7:00pm), live amplified.  

 
The Entertainment Application has been reviewed by the Chief of Police and approved.  
 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Entertainment will not be held for the Truro Concert Committee’s 
enrichment events.    

 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve Entertainment Licenses for  

• Truro Summer Concert Series, Lawn behind Truro Public Library, 7 Standish Way, 7/7, 7/14, 7/21, 7/28 
8/4, 8/11 (6:30pm-7:30pm) 8/18, 8/25 (6:00-7:00pm), live amplified.  

 
And authorize the Chair to sign the applications.   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. One Day Entertainment Application- Truro Concert Committee  
 

 

 

   Consent Agenda Item:  8A2 
 
 
 
 







1 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 14, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Approval of 2022 Seasonal License Renewals:  North of Highland Camping Area (52 Head of Meadow)  
 
EXPLANATION:  North of Highland Camping Area seasonal license renewal application and supporting 
documentation are before the Board for review and approval as the Local Licensing Authority.  There were no 
reported issues with these establishments in 2021. The Health Department License for North Truro Camping 
Area was issued on 5/13/2022 and 5/16/2022.  If you approve these for renewal, the licenses will be issued 
only upon compliance with all regulations and upon receipt of the necessary documents and fees. 
 

Mass General Law Licenses & Permits Issued by 
Select Board 

Names of Businesses 

Chapter 101 §2 Transient Vendor North of Highland Camping Area 
 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   The licenses will not be issued. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve a 2022 Seasonal North of Highland Camping Area Transient 
Vendor License upon compliance with all regulations and receipt of the necessary documents and fees.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Renewal Application for 2022: North of Highland Camping Area  
 

 

             Consent Agenda Item: 8C 
 
 
 
 



Number: 2022-021 

This is to certify that 

Consent Agenda Item: 8C 

Fee:$50.00 + $150 late fee 

Town of Truro Board of Health 

24 Town Hall Road, Truro, MA 02666 

Campground 

Greg & Brandon Currier, mgrs., d/b/a North of Highland 
Camping Area, LLC 

52 Head of the Meadow Rd 

Has Been Granted A License to Operate Recreational Camps, Overnight Camps or Trailer 

Coach Parks 

This license is issued in confonnity with the authority granted to the Truro Board of Health, by 
Chapter 140, Sections 32A, 32B, 32C, 32D, 32E as amended, and is subject to the provisions of the 
Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating thereto, and upon such tenns and 
conditions, and to the rules and regulations in regard to said Camps or Cabins so licensed as 
adopted by the Truro Board of Health and expires December 31, 2022 unless sooner suspended or 
revoked. 

Date 

�i,, I -U1,:'1 . .--·

# of units: 237 sites 

Emily Beebe, RS 

Agent to the Truro Board of Health 



























Page | 1 
 

Select Board Regular Meeting    Consent Agenda Item:  8D1 
March 22, 2022, at 5:00pm 
Via GoToMeeting Platform 
 
Select Board Members Present:  Robert Weinstein-Chair, Kristen Reed-Vice Chair, Susan 
Areson-Clerk, John Dundas-Member, Stephanie Rein-Member 
 
Others Present:  Darrin Tangeman-Town Manager, Kelly Clark-Assistant Town Manager, Alex 
Lessin-Finance Director, Jarrod Cabral-DPW Director, Barbara Carboni-Town Planner/Land Use 
Counsel, Tony Jackett-Harbor Master, Tim Silva, Keith Thurlow, Ronald Fichtner, Kristen 
Roberts, Helen McNeil-Ashton, Raphael Richter, Anne Greenbaum-Planning Board Chair, Emily 
Beebe-Health/Conservation Agent, Lori Meads, Eric Parker, Joan Holt, Jonathan Slater 
 
Chair Weinstein called the meeting to order at 5:00pm. 
 
Public Comment 
-Mr. Fichtner strongly encouraged the Select Board to consider postponing the Annual Town 
Meeting and moving it outdoors due to Covid related reasons and better attendance. 
-Mr. Thurlow stated he is concerned about climate change and that he wrote a letter to the 
editor of the Provincetown Independent.  He read that letter aloud to be part of the record. 
-Ms. McNeil-Ashton said that Wellfleet will be considering a resolution to restore native beach 
rights at its Select Board meeting tonight.  She will report back with the results.  12 of the 15 
Cape Townships have adopted a wastewater bylaw and Truro doesn’t have one yet.  She’d like 
to ask the Select Board, until a stormwater bylaw can be presented could they make decisions 
as if we already had a stormwater bylaw comparable to another rural community, such as 
Wellfleet.   
-Ms. Roberts wished to make a statement in support of the citizen-petitioned article regarding 
the expansion of the childcare voucher program passed at least years Annual Town Meeting.  
She is a member of the Economic Development Committee and she summarized how this 
expansion of the program was developed. 
-Ms. Greenbaum wanted to encourage people to attend the Planning Board meeting on April 6 
at 5pm.  The meeting will begin with a public conversation about housing. 
 
Public Hearings-None 
 
Board/Committee/Commission Appointments 
Interview and Appoint:  Amy Wolff-Conservation Commission  
This item was pulled from this agenda and will appear on the next Select Board agenda. 
 
Staff/Committee Updates-None 
 
Tabled Items-None 
 
Select Board Action 



Page | 2 
 

Review and Approval of Harbor Fee Increases 
Chair Weinstein is recusing himself as he is a user of the Harbor and will be affected by the fee 
increases.  He retains the right to speak as a private citizen.  Member Areson will also be 
affected by the fees and therefore will recuse herself.  She retains the right to speak as a private 
citizen. 
Pamet Harbor Commission Chair Silva explained that every four years the fees are reviewed.  
This year there are slight increases pertaining to seasonal passes.  He reviewed the changes. 
 
Member Dundas made a motion to approve the proposed changed to the Pamet Harbor Fee 
Schedule. 
Member Rein seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Recused 
Chair Weinstein-Recused 
So voted; 3-0-2, motion carries. 
 
Review and Approval of March Bond Sale and Useful Life Certificates 
Finance Director Lessin is at the meeting to talk about the recently completed bond sale.  One 
taxable bond was issued for the Walsh Property acquisition and another tax-exempt bond for a 
combination of projects including; East Harbor, Eagle Neck Creek, Fire Department tender, and 
Fire Department ambulance.  Finance Director Lessin explained the process of receiving bids for 
the bonds and the interest costs of both.  He’s asking that the Select Board approve the sale of 
the Series A and B Bond.  He took questions from the Select Board. 
 
Member Areson made a motion that the votes presented to this meeting relating to the 
issuance and details of the Town’s General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2022 Bonds, 
Series A and General Obligation Land Acquisition Bonds, Series B, each dated and closing 
March 29, 2022 are hereby adopted as presented and incorporated into the minutes of this 
meeting in their entirety and authorize the Clerk of the Select Board to sign electronically.  
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 
Discussion and Possible Vote Regarding Town Meeting Date and Location 



Page | 3 
 

Town Manager Tangeman explained that the date established by Town Charter would be April 
26.  There is an opportunity to move that date, but it would impact the Annual Town Election of 
May 10 which is a hard date.  Statistics don’t support significant issues with Covid right now but 
in preparation of any changes that should be a consideration.  The recommendation to the 
Select Board is to hold Annual Town Meeting outdoors on April 30 with a rain date of May 1.  
Health/Conservation Agent Beebe summarized the current order that the Board of Health has 
in place. 
 
Member Rein made a motion that, pursuant to General Laws c. 39, Section 9, the Select Board 
set the date for the Annual Town Meeting as April 30, 2022, with a rain date of May 1, 2022. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Chair Weinstein asked Member Rein if she would entertain amending her motion to indicate 
that the desire is to hold the meeting outside with deference to health issues, and if the 
weather precludes that, we have a rain date for another outdoor meeting on the 1st of May. 
Member Rein made a motion that, pursuant to General Laws c. 39, Section 9, the Select Board 
set the date for the Annual Town Meeting outside at the Truro Central School ballfield on 
April 30, 2022, with a rain date of May 1, 2022. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Review and Vote of Annual Town Meeting Articles 
 
Article 4:  Amendments to the FY2022 Operating Budget Funded by Free Cash 
Member Rein made a motion to recommend Article 4 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article 6:  Transfer of Funds from Free Cash 
Section 1:  To Reduce or Stabilize the FY2023 Tax Rate 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 1, as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 



Page | 4 
 

Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 2:  To the OPEB Trust Fund 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 2, as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 3:  To the Capital Expense Stabilization Fund 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 3, as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Rein seconded. 
Roll Call Vote:   
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 4:  To the Stabilization Fund 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 4, as printed in the 
Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 6:  To Revise the town’s Open Space and Recreation Plan 
Member Reed made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 6, as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 



Page | 5 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 7:  To General Fund Reserve Fund 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 7, as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 8:  To Purchase Additional Modules for Financial Transparency and Budgeting 
Software 
Member Reed made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 8, as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 9:  To Procure Engineering Services for Parking Lot Paving and Beach Parking Lot 
Maintenance 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 9, as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 



Page | 6 
 

Section 10:  To Procure Engineering and Design Services for Truro Central School HVAC 
System 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 10, as printed in the 
Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 11:  To Employee Benefit Account 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 11, as printed in the 
Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Section 12:  To Purchase Building Permitting Software 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article 6; Section 12, as printed in the 
Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article 36:  Childcare Voucher Program-Petitioned Article 
Mr. Richter provided some history on the article he brought forward last year regarding a 
childcare voucher program.  He feels the need to bring back another citizen petitioned article 
regarding the same topic to make it more of a permanent program and not a pilot program.  He 
summarized additions which he feels will enhance the program. 
Ms. Meads is in favor of the article as it relates to children of employees employed by 
businesses located in the Town of Truro. 



Page | 7 
 

Mr. Parker thinks this is a wonderful program but feels if this is to extend beyond one year it 
should be subject to a means test. 
Member Reed asked if Mr. Richter would speak to the Select Board articles regarding the 
childcare voucher program.  Assistant Town Manager Clark went over the three articles 
(Articles #9) and Mr. Richter gave suggestions. 
Chair Weinstein thinks putting this on the agenda for the 29th would be the best action at this 
time.  Assistant Town Manager Clark will put together different packages for the Board to 
review for the 29th. 
 
Article X:  Transfer of Funds from Affordable Housing Stabilization Fund to Affordable Housing 
Trust Fund 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article X:  Transfer of Funds from Affordable 
Housing Stabilization Fund to Affordable housing Trust Fund as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Reappropriate Authorized Borrowing Balances from Environmental Projects to 
Capital Expenses for Environmental Projects 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Reappropriate Authorized 
Borrowing Balances from Environmental Projects to Capital Expenses for Environmental 
Projects as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Appropriate Bond Anticipation Note Proceeds to East Harbor Culvert Project 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Appropriate Bond Anticipation 
Note Proceeds to East Harbor Culvert Project as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Rein seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 



Page | 8 
 

Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Appropriate Unexpended Fund Balances to Install Electric Vehicle Charging 
Stations 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Appropriate Unexpended Fund 
Balances to Install Electric Vehicle Charging Stations as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Rein seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Land Acquisition Articles 
Article 10:  Acquisition of Easements for the Herring River Restoration Project 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article 10:  Acquisition of Easements for the 
Herring River Restoration Project as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Personnel Bylaw Articles 
Article XX:  Amend Personnel Bylaw 6.3.6 Vacation Buy Back 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Amend Personnel Bylaw 6.3.6 
Vacation Buy Back as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 



Page | 9 
 

Acceptance of Massachusetts General Law Articles 
Article XX:  Accept M.G.L. c. 200A, §9A Disposition of abandoned funds by city or town; notice 
of period during which funds may be claimed; city treasurer authorized to hear claims; 
appeal; disbursement 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Accept M.G.L. c. 200A, §9A 
Disposition of abandoned funds by city or town; notice of period during which funds may be 
claimed; city treasurer authorized to hear claims; appeal; disbursement as printed in the 
Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Accept M.G.L. c.71, §37M Consolidation of Administrative Functions with City or 
Town 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Accept M.G.L. c.71, §37M 
Consolidations of Administrative Functions with City or Town as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Accept M.G.L. c.44, §55C Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Accept M.G.L. c.44, §55C 
Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Charter Amendment Articles 
Article 18:  Charter Amendment to Section 7-1-2 



Page | 10 
 

Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article 18:  Charter Amendment to Section 7-
1-2 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 2-3-3 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 2-
3-3 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-2-10 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-
2-10 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Dundas seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-2-10 
Member Areson made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-
2-10 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 



Page | 11 
 

Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-4-7 (add the word unexcused to the absence of a 
member and also changes the word Chairman to Chair) 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-
4-7 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-4-7 (in case Town Meeting voters decline the 
changes proposed by the Charter Review Committee this is strictly to remove the gender 
from Section 6-4-7 and would be indefinitely postponed should the article before it be 
passed). 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-
4-7 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Appendix B-Part 3 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Charter Amendment to Section 6-
4-7 as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 



Page | 12 
 

Article XX:  Amend Zoning Bylaw §30.5 Flood Plain District 
Member Dundas made a motion to recommend Article XX:  Amend Zoning Bylaw §30.5 Flood 
Plain District as printed in the Warrant. 
Member Reed seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Purpose-10.2 
Planning Board Chair Greenbaum explained that she appeared before the Select Board at their 
last regular meeting and the next day she attended a Planning Board meeting.  The materials 
the Select Board had at that prior meeting were about a week old.  The information they have 
before them tonight is four articles rather than seven.  Three articles were withdrawn based on 
feedback.  One article has not been changed and three have been changed.  Member Reed 
wants the Board and the public to understand that they are being presented with amended 
language and based on process the only way these Planning Board articles would be on the 
Warrant is if the Select Board chose to adopt them as Select Board Planning articles.  That will 
need to be determined first.  The second process will be to go through and vote to recommend. 
Member Areson stated that there will be four Planning Board articles on the Warrant, the 
question is whether the Select Board will adopt the changes that the Planning Board made at 
the meeting after the last Select Board meeting or whether they will revert to the language that 
the Select Board had at their last meeting.  After that determination the Select Board would 
have to vote to recommend. 
 
Planning Board Chair Greenbaum walked the Select Board through the amended article for 
Purpose-10.2. 
After much discussion, Member Areson suggested to not move ahead with discussion of the 
Planning Board articles that had been changed since the last time the Board saw them and to 
expect to have the unrevised versions on the Warrant.   
  
Member Reed made a motion for the Select Board to adopt Planning Board Article 10.2-
Purpose, as revised, as a Select Board Article for the Town Meeting Warrant. 
Member Dundas seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Nay 
Member Reed-Nay 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Nay 
Chair Weinstein-Nay 
So voted; 1-4-0, motion does not carry. 



Page | 13 
 

 
10.4-Definitions-Street 
Planning Board Chair Greenbaum walked the Select Board through an explanation of this 
Article. 
Member Reed made a motion for the Select Board to adopt Planning Board Article 10.4-
Definitions as one of their Select Board Articles with the amended language for this Town 
Meeting. 
Member Dundas seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Nay 
Member Dundas-Nay 
Member Areson-Nay 
Member Reed-Nay 
Chair Weinstein-Nay 
So voted; 0-5-0, motion does not carry. 
 
Article 6, §40.1-Duplex Bylaw 
Planning Board Chair Greenbaum talked about the revision and the changes proposed. 
Member Reed made a motion for the Select Board to adopt Planning Board Article 6, §40.1-
Duplex Bylaw with their amended changes as a Select Board Article for this Town Meeting. 
Member Dundas seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Nay 
Member Dundas-Nay 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Nay 
Chair Weinstein-Nay 
So voted; 1-4-0, motion does not carry. 
 
Article 3-Lot Coverage §10.4 Definitions 
Planning Board Chair Greenbaum stated that this Article had no changes. 
Member Areson asked that since this Article will appear on the Warrant as-is, was the Select 
Board now moving to recommend or not recommend?  She added that petitioners have been 
waiting to discuss their articles and perhaps the Select Board could move the recommendations 
on the Planning Board articles to the March 29th meeting. 
 
Petitioned Articles 
Article 36:  Non-Binding Public Advisory Question Calling for Holtec to Withdraw Plans to 
Discharge Radioactive Water Into Cape Cod Bay 
Chair Weinstein would like this moved to the Select Board meeting of the 29th to allow for Town 
Counsel guidance. 
 
 
Article 36:  To Prevent Dumping of Radioactive Water in the Cape Cod Bay-Petitioned Article 



Page | 14 
 

Ms. Holt did not have anything to add to the discussion but stated that she believed everyone 
was in agreement about not wanting radioactive water dumped into the Cape Cod Bay. 
Assistant Town Manager Clark’s original recommendation was to hold off on voting to 
recommend petitioned articles.  She stated that if the Board would like to take votes to 
recommend they can do so and if something is received by Town Counsel which changes the 
Article (or states that it’s not in legal form) then it can be brought back to the Select Board for a 
revote.  Member Reed, based upon Member Areson’s, Member Rein’s and Assistant Town 
Manager Clark’s comments, is comfortable not voting on the petitioned articles and hearing 
from the lead petitioners as a way to move the meeting along.   
 
There were some other articles which Raphael Richter was the lead petitioner on.  He was no 
longer on the meeting and the Chair asked that those petitioned articles be moved to the 
meeting of the 29th. 
 
Discussion of Short-Term Rental Impact Fee 
Town Manager Tangeman stated the Select Board has the authority to develop and send to 
Town Meeting a community impact fee of not more than 3% upon an acceptance vote by Town 
Meeting.  Chair Weinstein would like to forward the consideration of this fee to their meeting 
of the 29th.  Member Areson suggested moving this topic to an April or May meeting.  All 
members were in agreement to moving this topic to an April or May meeting. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Clark noticed that Mr. Slater, lead petitioner for the Article: 
Establishing a Net Zero Building Standard for Town-Funded Building Projects, was in 
attendance.  Mr. Slater spoke about his petitioned article.  Member Reed would like staff 
included to discuss budget implications along with the Truro Housing Authority and Energy 
Committee to have input.  Member Dundas understands Mr. Slater’s intent with this article but 
feels this will tie the Town to the inability to build anything.  If Mr. Slater’s intent is to educate 
and create an understanding that might be an easier sell.  Member Areson would like to hear 
from members of the Climate Action Committee and Energy Committee before voting on 
whether to recommend this article for Town Meeting.  Assistant Town Manager Clark stated 
that this article fell into the group of articles awaiting review by Town Counsel and the Select 
Board may want to wait to discuss this until their meeting on the 29th. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Member Reed recused herself from voting on the license for Avenue D and Salty Market. 
Member Areson noted there were some typos on both sets of minutes which she would send 
to staff, and she pointed out some more substantive corrections.  Member Reed has some 
grammatical corrections which she will also send to staff. 
Member Rein would like to recuse herself from voting on the Budget Task Force Meeting 
Minutes as she was not present. 
 
Member Areson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda with the minute 
amendments coming from Select Board members and the two recusals. 
Member Dundas seconded. 



Page | 15 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Select Board Reports/Comments 
Member Areson will hold her report for the meeting of the 29th. 
Member Rein mentioned that during the last Walsh Property Community Planning Committee 
meeting it was evident that all members were frustrated with the process thus far.  As liaison, 
it’s Member Rein’s job to inform the Select Board that in order for the planning process to 
move forward there is a need for a more open line of communication between the Committee, 
the Town Administration, various staff and the community at large.  She asked the Select Board 
to take this on as a future agenda item. 
Member Dundas wished to remind everyone to remain vigilant about phishing activity coming 
digitally toward us all. 
 
Town Manager Report and Update on Truro Talks Newsletter 
Town Manager Tangeman deferred his report to the 29th. 
 
Next Meeting Agenda:  Potential Regular Meeting-March 29, 2022; Regular Meeting-April 12, 
2022 
Town Manager Tangeman stated that they intend to bring the rest of the Town Meeting 
Articles forward.  He will address the agenda for the April 12 meeting on the 29th. 
 
Member Areson made a motion to adjourn at 9:55pm. 
Member Rein seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Noelle L. Scoullar 
 
____________________________ 
Darrin K. Tangeman, Town Manager   
Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 16 
 

Public Records material of 03.22.2022 
1. Application to Serve with Chair endorsement-Amy Wolff 
2. Pamet Harbor Commission Fee Recommendations/Current Fee Schedule 
3. Select Board Truro Bond Series A and B 
4. Town Meeting Articles List 
5. 2019 Memo from KP Law on Short-Term Rental Legislation 
6. One Day Entertainment Application and Public Entertainment on a Sunday State 

application 
7. Renewal Applications for 2022: Highland Links; Captain’s Choice; Lewis Brother’s 

Homemade Ice Cream; Days Market and Deli 
8. Seasonal Alcohol Beverages Control Commission Renewal Certification 2022 
9. Budget Task Force Minutes of February 4, 2022 
10. Select Board Meeting Minutes of January 25, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 1 
 

Truro Select Board Meeting Minutes    Consent Agenda Item:  8D2 
Tuesday, April 5, 2022 
 
Select Board Members Present:  Robert Weinstein-Chair, Kristen Reed-Vice Chair, Susan 
Areson-Clerk, John Dundas-Member, Stephanie Rein-Member 
 
Others Present:  Darrin Tangeman-Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager-Kelly Clark 
 
Chair Weinstein called the meeting to order at 5:00pm. 
 
Finalize Warrant 
 
Member Reed made a motion to remove Town Meeting Article: Charter Amendment to 
Appendix B-Part 3 from the 2022 Annual Town Meeting Warrant. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Vote to Electronically Sign Warrant 
Chair Weinstein asked that the page they were signing be amended to remove the word Sirs 
with the wording Select Board. 
Member Areson had questions about some of the Articles along with punctuation and word 
choice suggestions.  Town Manager Tangeman stated that as long as the changes did not 
substantively change the Articles, they could amend.  She went over her revisions. 
Member Reed made a motion to approve and electronically sign the 2022 Annual Town 
Meeting Warrant posting and to post the Warrant in accordance with the Town Charter. 
Member Areson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Member Rein-Aye 
Member Areson-Aye 
Member Reed-Aye 
Member Dundas-Aye 
Chair Weinstein-Aye 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Member Reed made a motion to adjourn at 5:20pm. 
Member Areson seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 



Page | 2 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Noelle L. Scoullar 
 
_____________________________ 
Darrin K. Tangeman, Town Manager 
Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 
Public Records material of 04.05.2022 

1. Article:  Charter Amendment to Appendix B – Part 3 
2. Draft 2022 Annual Town Meeting Warrant 
3. Posting of the Town Meeting Warrant 


	22-06-14 Select Board Agenda
	4A Agenda Request- Krista Edwards-Peter Morris
	4A1 Application to Serve-Krista Edwards_Redacted
	4A2 Application to Serve-Peter Morris
	5A IT Staff Update ARPA
	5A1 Broadband Needs Assessment Survey Template
	Phase 1: Community Broadband Study and Assessment
	Task 1: Community Education
	Task 2: Stakeholder Engagement
	Task 3: Community Broadband Survey
	Task 4: Broadband Performance Testing
	Task 5: High-Level Design and Cost Estimate
	Task 6: High-Level Business Analysis

	5B Staff Update Summer Safety
	6A Agenda Request SB Policy 28 Curb Cuts proposed changes
	6A1 existing policy_28_curb_cut_2007
	6A2a Policy #28 Curb Cut Policy June 14 2022
	6A3 Curb Cut Approvals Form
	Building Commissioner Approval
	Chief of Police Approval
	Fire Chief Approval
	Health & Conservation Agent Approval
	Public Works Director Approval
	Town Manager Approval
	Select Board Approval
	Planning Board Approval (if required)
	Mass Highway Referral (if required)
	Public Works Director Declaration of Compliance
	Building Commissioner Final Approval

	6B Agenda Request-Dana Pazolt Discussion
	7A Agenda Request - DLS Financial Management Resource Bureau_
	Agenda Item: 7A
	FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): N/A. Staff time only.

	7B Agenda Request Truro Center Rd
	7B1 Service Agreement_Pamet River Supplemental Field Investigations 06-07-2022final
	7B2 WHG Proposal_TruroCenterRoad_Suppl_Field_Inv_Modeling_7June2022
	7C Agenda Request-Board-Committee Appointment Process
	8 Consent Agenda
	8A1 Agenda Request-Harbor to the Bay
	8A1 Harbor to the Bay
	8A2 Agenda Request Entertainment Licenses
	8A2 Truro Concert Committee Entertainment Application
	8C Agenda Request Seasonal Business License Renewal
	8C Application for North of Highland Camping Area 2022
	8D1 22-03-22 Select Board-MIN
	8D2 22-04-05-Select Board-MIN



